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Directors’ Report

Introduction

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of Transport Trading Limited (“TTL” or the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”) together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Group has prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU (“Adopted IFRSs”).

Principal activity
The principal activity of the Group is the provision of passenger transport services within London.
Directors

The directors who served during the year were:

S. Allen Resigned 30 September 2015
M. Brown '

H. Carter

L. Daniels

P. Hendy ) Resigned 16 July 2015
I.Nunn Appointed 21 September 2015

None of the directors had any beneficial interest in the shares of Transport Trading Limited or its subsidiaries.
The Group maintains directors’ and officers’ liability insurance.
Employee involvement and communication

Transport Trading Limited recognises the role of its employees in enabling the Group to achieve its business
objectives. This is reflected in the Board’s commitment to equal opportunities and effective employee

communications.

Consultation on issues affecting the workforce also takes place at regular intervals with representatives from the
Group and trade unions.

A strong emphasis is placed on the provision of news through a variety of media, including intranets (both a TfL
Group-wide intranet and local business units’ intranet) and poster campaigns. Employees have opportunities to voice
their opinions and ask questions through intranet sites and surveys. Face to face briefings and team meetings are
actively encouraged and are held in all business units across the Groin.

Equality and inctusion

s

The Group values the diversity which exists in our city and aspires to this being reflected in our workforce. This is
reflected not only in our recruitment and selection processes, but also throughout the employment cycle of every
member of staff. The Group is committed to providing equal opportunities to all employees, irrespective of their
gender, sexual orientation, marital status, creed, colour, race, ethnic origin or disability. The commitment extends to
recruitment and selection, training, career d'evelopment.' flexible working arrangements and promotion .and
performance appraisal. The Group is committed to comply with our legal responsibilities under the Equality Act
2010 to make reasonable adjustments to a person’s working conditions wherever possible. In the event of members
of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues and to
provide specialised training where this is appropriate. Employee numbers are disclosed in the notes to the accounts.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Health and safety

The Group is committed to continuous improvement in health, safety, security and environmental (“HSSE”)
performance. In addition to HSSE management as part of normal business activity, HSSE objectives are identified
and regularly reviewed to form short and longer term plans for improving health, safety, security and environment for
customers, employees and contractors. U

Political donations

No political donations were made during the year (2014/15 £nil).
Dividends |
It is not proposed to declare a dividend for the year (2014/15 £nil).
Corporate governance

Transport Trading Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Transport for London, which appoints all the directors of
the Company. The Board of Transport Trading Limited, through its standing orders and management structure,
implements the corporate aims and controls laid down by Transport for London. Particulars in respect of corporate
governance can be found in Transport for London’s Annual Governance Statement.

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware, and each director has taken
all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Appointment of new Auditor

Following a tender process in 2014, Ernst & Young LLP were appointed as external auditor to the Group and
Company, commencing with the 2015/16 financial year. Their appointment has been approved by the shareholders.

Approved by the Board on 04 July 2016 and signed on behalf of the Board by

{144
Nivivavi)

1748 W4 |

H. Carter

Director
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Strategié Report

Activities and future developments

As stated in the Directors' Report, the principal activity of the Group is the provision of passenger transport services
within London. The Group does not anticipate any changes in its p‘rincipal activities in the foreseeable future.

Strategic report

The year ended 31 March 2016 was another year of solid' performance from the Group. Once again demand
increased; especially on the DLR, and reliability and customer satisfaction scores remained high across the Group’s
‘network.

Work continued on major projects; to improve and extend services across London. Projects included Crossrail, tube
infrastructure and signalling upgrades. During the year, improvements delivered included:

* New passenger tunnels at Victoria station joining the new north ticket hall and the enlarged south ticket
hall. .

*  Tottenham Court Road station re-opened with a new step-free access lift shaft, a new passageway that will
link to the new larger ticket hall, and refitted platforms and refurbished escalators.
+ At Tufnell Park station the two old lifts were replaced with new, more energy efficient models.

~*~ A new crossover was installed on the Metropolitan line at King's Cross St. Pancras station to support plans

to reach 32 trains per hour on the line.

«  Overground stations have been brought up to modern standards, with CCTV, better security, a turn up and ‘
go service for disabled Londoners and staff present at every station at all times.

*  The Crossrail project neared 75 per cent completion.

A full Narrative Report and Financial Review report for the TfL Group is included in the Annual Report of Transport
for London. This will be available on its website (www.tfl.gov.uk) in due course.

Underground and Rail operations

The Group’s Underground and Rail operations include:

. London Underground, providing passenger rail services across the Capital.and into suburban areas;
. Docklands Light Railway, providing passenger rail services to the east of the Capital;

. London Overground, providing passenger rail services across the Capital and into suburban areas;

. Tramtrack Crgydon providing passenger tram services in the Croydon area and across south London

London Underground

Demand for London Underground’s (“LU") services continues to grow, with passenger journeys in 2015/16 reaching a
new annual high of 1,349.3 million, an increase of 3.4 per cent (43.9 million journeys) from last year.

These passengers are benefitting from improved underlying performance, with LU achieving its best ever customer
satisfaction score. This reflects notable improvements in reliability, the delivery of line upgrades, and increased

service frequencies.

During the year we undertook a wide ranging programme to transform our service to our customers. Staff have been
m\oved out of ticket offices and back areas to public parts of stations, such as ticket halls and platforms, making
them more visible and available to help our customers. Mystery shopping surveys report a marked rise in staff
helpfulness following this transformation. )

2
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Strategic Report (continued)

Underground and Rail operations (continued)

Station modernisation is a part of our strategic pfogramme to relieve congestion throughout London. At Victoria
station, we completed the connection of the tunnels joining the new north ticket hall and the enlarged south ticket
hall. The south tlcket hall floor slab has been fully cast and we started work on the construction of the lift that
connects the existing Network Rail concourse to the enlarged London Underground tlcket hall. We completed the
civils and structural works for the north ticket hall and the testing and commnssnonmg of the station systems is
progressing well.

The Central line platforms at Tottenham Court Road station re-opened following an | f-month closure, during
which we constructed a.new step-free access lift shaft, a new paséageway that will link to the new larger ticket hall,
and refitted the platforms and refurbished escalators. The closure also included restoration of the celebrated
Eduardo Paolozzi mosaics. ,

At Tufnell Park station we replaced two lifts with new, more energy efficient ones, contributing towards TfL's
commitment to reduce the carbon footprint of Tube stations. We took advantage of the station closure to
refurbish the ticket hall with an extra ticket gate, automatic wide aisle gate and an improved customer information
area. The station was re-opened to customers ahead of schedule.

During the year we awarded a major Automatic Train Control (ATC) Asignal supply contract and we have started the
fit-out of ATC equipment on our trains. This drives forward our work to increase capacity and improve customer
journey time with a more frequent and reliable service. As part of this work, we aim to deliver 36 trains per hour
[tph) peak service across the Victoria line during 2016, and have now replaced the deep Alevel‘ crossover at
Walthamstow and installed new, more reliable point machines.

We installed a new crossover on the Metropolitan line at King's Cross St. Pancras station during a Christmas
closure. This required major signals remodelling and the changes will support the Four Lines Modernisation (4LM)
Automatic Train Control (ATC) project in achieving 32 trains per hour. We completed significant ballasted track
renewal at Paddmgton working side by side with Network Rail to minimise the closure.

We are extendlng the Northern line to Battersea and will build two new stations at Nine Elms and Battersea. Work
has begun work at the main locations and is expected to be complete by 2020.

In November 2015 we took responsibility from Hertfordshire County Council to extend the Metropolitan Line from

"Croxley to Watford Junction via Watford High Street. It will link to the current London Overground services at
Watford High Street, before terminating at Watford Junction for an interchange with the West Coast Mainline
services. Two new stations will be created at Cassiobridge and Watford Vicarage Road. The aim is to complete the
link in late 2020.
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Strategic Report (continued)*

Underground and Rail operations (continued)

Docklands Light Railway

This year was the first full year that the franchisee Keolis Amey Docklands Limited operated the Docklands Light
Railway (“DLR"). The year saw operational performance finish with an annual departure score of 99.1 per cent,
excluding the 2 day DLR industrial action. This is slightly below last year's performance but still above the
contractual target. The high Customer Satisfaction Survey (CSS) score of 89 was maintained from last year, even
though there was a temporary drop due to the industrial action. '

This overall performance was achieved, once again; against an annually increasing ridership, that carried more than
{16.9 million passengers — 6. per cent higher than in the previous year and the highest in DLR’s history.

Full year demand on the Emirates Air Line (“EAL”) was 1.55 million passenger journeys, showing marginal year on
year growth in spite of reduced availability due to a higher than normal wind-related downtime. Full year availability
was 94.4 per cent, which was 2 per cent lower than last year. The full year CSS score was just above 93, the highest

since the EAL opened.

Rail for London

Rail for London (“RFL") is responsible for the operation of the London Overground {“LO”) and infrastructure
maintenance for the East London line. London Overground is an orbital railway consisting of the North London,
West London, Barking to Gospel Oak and Euston to Watford Junction lines (the North London Railway), as well as
the East London line and the South London line from Queen’s Road Peckham through to Clapham Junction. On 3|
May 2015, the LO network was extended when RfL took over services between Enfield Town/Chingford/Cheshunt
via Seven Sisters to Liverpool Street and Romford to Upminster. At the same time RfL took responsibility for
services between §henfield and Liverpool Street which are being operated as TfL Rail.

In the year LO carried 184.4 million people, an increase of 32 per cent over previous year (2014/15 139.8m), and
customer satisfaction scores remained strong at 84 per cent, up | per cent on last year.

LO’s operational performance, as measured by the public performance measure (PPM) was 94.4 per cent at the end
of the year. This was significantly higher than the national average for train operators of 89.| per cent, and secured
LO joint third place in the national PPM league.

[

Work to lengthen trains from four carriages to five, which began in November 2014, has now been completed on
time and on budget. The new carriages, which increase passenger capa‘city on the East Lgndon, West London, North
London and Euston to Watford routes by 25 per cent, will help meet the increasing demand for the highly popular
rail service and provide room for an extra | 70 passengers per train.

Stations have been brought up to modern standards, with CCTV, better security, a turn up and go service for
disabled Londoners and staff present at every station at all times.

Improvements were also compléted on a new interchange between-Hackney Downs and Hackney Central stations.
The 200m-long covered walkway includes lifts, monitored CCTV and bright lighting — making journeys quicker, safer
and more accessible. It will mean passengers at Hackney Central can easily access trains to North London or to
Liverpool Street via Hackney Downs, and those at Hackney Downs can easil)'( access trains to Stratford or Highbury &

Islington via Hackney Central.

TfL Rail carried 40.1 million people in the 10 months of operation and customer satisfaction score was 83 per cent,
an improvement of 3 per cent from when the operations were transferred. Operational performance as measured by
the public performance measure (“PPM”) was 94.0 per cent at the end of the year, placing them fifth in the national
PPM league. '
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Strategic Report (continued)

Tramtrack Croydon

Tramtrack Croydon (“TCL”) passenger journeys were 27.7 million people (2014/15 30.9m), and customer
satisfaction scores were strong at 90 per cent. The building of an additional tram platform-at Wimbledon station
was completed during the year, allowing services between Wimbledon and Croydon to rise from eight to twelve
trams per hour.

Surface Transport
The Group's Surface Transport operations include:

* London Buses, which manages bus services in London. It plans routes, specifies service levels and monitors
service quality. The bus services are operated by private companieé, which work under'contract;

¢ The Cycle Hire Scheme which provides bicycles for hire by the general public;

*  Dial-a-Ride, which provides door-to-door transport for Londoners with disabilities;

*  Victoria Coach Station, which is the coach travel ‘hub’ of central London and serves both the UK and
continental Europe, handling around 14.5 million passengers per year travelling on more than 466,000 coaches;

*+  London River Services, which owns and operates nine passenger piers on the Thames, licenses boat services
using those piers and manages the operation of the Woolwich Ferry.

,A London Buses

London Bus Services Limited’s total number of passenger journeys for the year was 2,314 miltion {2014/15 2,385
million). Bus network income of £1,529 million for the year was less than | per cent lower than the previous year’s
total of £1,538 million.

The bus network remained resilient in the face of one of the most active eras of road modernisation in London.
More than 2.3 billion passenger journeys were made on the network as a result of the high frequency of the
network and many reliability measures introduced to avoid delays to buses on their way to destinations. This
helped avoid more income from the bus network being lost from disruption and also kept customer satisfaction at
record levels. Income was slightly down on the previous year by £9 million.

To contend with London’s growing population and economic activity, bus services continued to be tailored to
demand to reflect changing travel habits and opportunities for inter-connected travel. Bus services have been
enhanced with additional overall mileage including extensions to routes 70, 130 and EL2, major frequency
increases on a dozen routes including the 127, 173, ELI and EL2 and additional journeys on many more. Night
services have also been enhanced with busy routes receiving frequency increases, and seven new night services
introduced.

Buses continue to be the dependable workhorse of public transport for commuters during the day as well as at
night when one out of every two people on board are heading to work and are part of the growing night-time
economy. They remain one of the most importanf sources of investment in UK manufacturing with around 60 per
cent of TfL's spend through its supply chain going to the UK. Maintaining a relatively young bus fleet requires from
600 to 800 new buses entering each year. One of the most prominent additions has been the New Routemasters
which are deployed to mostly central London corridors where their hybrid technology can assist with exhaust
emission reduction. '

There are now more than 700 of these in the fleet, subporting Wrightbus production line jobs in Northern Ireland,
engine assembly in Darlington, seat making in Telford, wheelchair ramp construction in Hoddesdon, Herts, and
flooring from Liskeard in Cornwall. Last year, the TfL Board gave approval to procure an additional 195 vehicles,
taking the total number on order to 1,000 by summer 2017. Route 59 was the 22nd route to be converted in March
and was followed by the 91 in April, the 21| in May and the 189 in June. As well as hybrid vehicles, the bus fleet
now has 22 pure-electric and 8 hydrogen fuel-cell buses with no tailpipe emissions, and in east London there are
range-extended hybrids which can operate up to 80 per cent of the time in all-electric mode with the help of
battery boosts at wireless charging stations at Walthamstow and Canning Town bus stations.
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Strategic Report (continued)

During 2015/16, TfL also completed the second stage of an exhaust after-treatment fitment programme which saw
the number of Euro Ill buses with selective catalytic reduction equipment rise to 2,200. This marks a major
milestone in emissions reduction as the fitment programme, combined with replacement of other un-retrofitted
buses from the fleet with new buses, meant that oxides of nitrogen emissions (NOx) were brought down 20 per
cent compared to 2012 levels — contributing to cleaner air and a healthier environment for people living, working
and visiting the capital. As part of a separate environmental target, the proportion of the fleet now served by
cleaner hybrid buses is now approaching 20 per cent.

Cycle Hire

2015/16 saw the Cycle Hire scheme achie;/e just under 9.9 million hires for the financial year with 57 per cent of all
hires coming from members.

Notable achievements include the addition of 1000 docking points as part of an intensification programme and the
expansion of the scheme into the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park. The period also saw the changeover of the entire
scheme livery in line with the change of sponsor from Barclays to Santander on time and to budget. Major
innovations during the period include the development of mobile app functionality which allows customers to hire
bikes direct from their phone. This has proved to be extremely popular with over half a million hires being
undertaken in this way. Working with Santander and utilising their marketing activation budget it has been agreed to
roll out Blaze laser lights on the entire fleet to help increase visibility to other road users.

Dial-a-Ride

Dial-a-Ride (“DaR”} services forms an integral part of the Mayor's Transport Strategy by providing a door to door )
transport service for members of the public who are unable to access mainstream public transport due to mobility
impairment. During the year to 31 March 2016, Dial-a-Ride scheduled 89.9 per cent (2014/15 90.2 per cent) of all
trip ;'equests received which was slightly lower than target of 91.0 per cent (2014/15 90 per cent). After on the
day/eve cancellations of scheduled trips by passengers, the service delivered 1,245,141 trips, 6.0 per cent less than
in 2014/15 (1,300, 136). Both the percentage of trip requests scheduled and the completed trips were affected by
driver shortages during the year which is being addressed through a pan London recruitment campaign.

Customer satisfaction remained high at 92 per cent (2014/15 92 per cent) despite the lower than target trip
requests scheduled. Overall demand for the Dial-a-Ride service reduced by 5.3 per cent compared to the previous
year. The nature of demand continued to show change during the year, impacted by the wider economic conditions
not only affecting individual personal activity but also as the provision of some public and charitable funded social
activities reduced or changed across London. Individual lifestyles and therefore travel needs of Dial-a-ride
members continue to evolve with more diverse service demand developing. ’

Victoria Coach Station

Victoria Coach Station (“VCS”) provided facilities for circa '14.5 million passengers and 466,000 coach depértures
“and arrivals serving the United Kingdom and mainland continental Europe. This compared to circa 14.0 million
passengers and 460,000 coach departures and arrivals in 2014/15.

Further improvements have been made to the facilities within the station, including improvements to the ticket hall
and left luggage and retail facilities.

Further works are planned for 2016/17 to improve the station infrastructure. These include a scheme of major
works to repair the Grade |l listed canopy over the East Terminal, sigﬁificant repairs to the concrete coach deck and
to the air handling units throughout the station complex. In addition further improvements are planned to the
provision and quality of the retail outlets in Station.

VCS continued to perform well in customer satisfaction surveys. Furthermore, the commitment to providing a high
standard of customer service continued to be reflected in high scores for staff performance and attitude.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Surface Transport (continued)
London River Services

During the year, a total of [0.30 million passengers (10.02 million in 2014/15) used London River Services’ pier
facilities, Woolwich Ferry and licensed river tour and river bus services. These numbers reflect continued strong
underlying growth in passenger demand. '

The Woolwich Ferry carried 0.88 million vehicles (0.9 million in 2014/15) and |.73 million passengers inclusive of
vehicle drivers (1.75 million in 2014/15). Briggs Marine completed the implementation of the TfL funded
programme of landside infrastructure investments to extend the operating life of the ferry to at least 2024. Whilst
every effort was made to minimise disruption to customers, ferry performance was affected by traffic restrictions
resulting from these works throughout the year. This is reflected in the reduced vehicle and passenger numbers.

During the year, further progress was made on the objectives of the River Action Plan, which was launched in
February 2013 with a number of specific measures to be taken by Transport for London and other stakeholders to
help boost the number of river trips in line with achieving the Mayor’s target of |2 million passe'nger journeys a year
by 2020. : . :

Other activities
The Group's other activities include:

* The Crossrail project to construct a rail tunnel under central London in order to provide a new passenger
service linking Maidenhead and Heathrow in the west to Shenfield and Abbey Wood in the east, covering Canary
Wharf and Stratford; o '

"+ London’s Transport Museum which provides education and entertainment on the history of transportation in

London.

Crossrall

During the year, £1,490m was spent on the Crossrail project.

By the end of the year, the Project was broadly 75 per cent complete. The eight Tunnel Boring Machines completed
their journeys under central London in May 2015. With the tunnels delivered, construction on Crossrail’s central
section moved on to the fitting out of tunnels, shafts and portals and the continued build of new stations.

In February 2016, Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth Il visited the under-construction Crossrail station at Bond Street, as
it was announced the new railway will be known as the Elizabeth line in her honour when services through central
London open in December 2018. The announcement followed TfL unveiling designs for the new trains, which will
enter service from May 2017 before the project is fully completed in 2019.

London Transport Museum

London Transport Museum is a charitable business that explores and interprets.the close relationship between the
capital and its transport heritage.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Treasury activities

As at 3t March 2016, the interest on a cumulative total of £1,997.8m of borrowings in issue had been hedged

through a combination of gilt locks and interest rate swaps.

The fair value at the year end of the outstanding interest rate derivatives taken out to hedge the interest rate on
borrowings was a net liability of £71.9m. Further cumulative cash- payments ?f £118.1m made on settlement of gilt
locks in prior years and which were deferred within equity, are being released to the Income Statement as an interest
rate hedge over the term of borrowings issued by Transport for London. Hedging in the Group is achieved through
the drawdown of intercompany loans by Transport for London Finance Limited from Transport for London and the
onward lending of the monies to London Underground Limited, a fellow subsidiary undertaking of the Transport
Trading Limited Group.

-

The Group also holds an amortising interest rate swap in order to fix the floating interest rate risk on operating lease
payments for rolling stock under a lease taken out by RfL. The fair value of the derivative at 31 March 2016 was a
liability of £23.0m (2015 £20.9m). :

The Group also entered into a number of foreign exchange swaps and forwards to hedge the currency risk on foreign
currency investments entered into by TfL. At 3| March 2016 the Group held forward foreign exchange contracts to
sell euros to a net value of £754.4m (2015 £594.2m). Although fully effective as hedges at the TfL Group level, as
the hedged investments are in a different legal entity to the derivatives, these contracts were not in formally
designated hedging relationships for accounting purposes. Hedge accounting has not therefore been applied. A fair
value loss on these contracts totalling £41.4m (2015 £21.3m gain) has been recognised directly in the Income
Statement within financial income.

/

Risk management 4

The Group has a risk management process and arrangements that enable it systematically to identify, assess,
manage and monitor business risks. The risk management process aims to.complement and support the underlying
mainstream management of the organisation. )

The risk management framework provides a consistent platform to compare and contrast risks from differing sources
and types of risks. Impact is assessed in financial and non-financial terms (e.g. time delay, customer service and

: reputatibn impacts). Each risk is allocated a risk owner who is responsible for the correct interpretation, mitigation
and reporting of the risk. ‘

The companies within the Group hold regular Risk Management Meetings. The remit of these meetings is to oversee

the delivery and development of.internal control and risk management processes and culture within the organisation. .

The meetings review strategic level risks and other internal control reports.

’

Approved by the Board on 04 July 2016 and signed on behalf of the Board by
R .

X

VvV

H. Carter

Director

-
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

In Respect of the Directors’ Report, the Strategic ‘Report and the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' report, the Strategic report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU ("Adopted IFRSs”) and applicable law.

Under company law the directors must not épprové the financial statements unless they are satisfied that théy give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that
period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

*  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
*  state whether they have been prepared in accordance with Adopted IFRSs; and

*  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group or Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
Group and Compény and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Independent Auditor’s Report | ~
To the members of Transport Trading Limited

4

We have audited the financial statements of Transport Trading Limited for the year ended 3| March 2016 which
comprise the Group and Parent Company Statements of Financial Position, the Group Income Statement, the Group
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group and Parent Company Statements of Cash Flow, the Group and
Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity and the related notes | to 33. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as
adopted by the Europeah Union and, as regards the parént company financial statements, as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006. )

'

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, .in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors ;nd auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 10, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. ;

s

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

r

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the parent
company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In
addition, we read all the financial .and non-financial information in the annual report. to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report. - i

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion:

* the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent Company’s affairs as
at 31 March 2016 and of the Group’s loss for the year then ended;

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union; - .

* the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

* the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of Transport Trading Limited (continued)

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception ' -

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, in our opinion: '

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or '
« the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law.are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Karl Havers (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London '

July 2016
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Group Income Statement

Year ended 3/ March

Note
Revenue : I
Net operating costs

_Operating loss ' : ) 2

Grant income | . 3
Other gains and losses 4
Total profit from operations
Financial income 7
Financial expenses ’ 8-
Group share of profit after tax of associated undertakings 14
Loss before taxation
Income tax credit ‘ 9
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 3/ March

Note
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income and expenditure:
Items that will not subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension schemes : 29

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments
Derivative fair value loss recycléd to income and expenditure

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment i

Total comprehensive income and éxpenditure for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

2015

2016
£m £m
4917.4 46563
(5.630.8)  (5398.8)
(713.4) (742.5)
807.5 786.1
(03.3 199.0
(97.4 242.6
0.3 21.7
(317.1) (284.3)
25.9 -
(93.5) (20.0)
2.2 .
(91.3) (20.0)
2016 2015
£m £fm
(91.3) (20.0)
5.1 7.2
5.1 7.2
17.4 (33.5)
7.6 7.2
107.9 99:2
132.9 72.9
46.7 60. 1

Transport Trading Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 3|1 March 2016 13



Group Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment property

Equity accounted investment in associated undertakings
Derivative financia.l instruments

Trade and other receivables

Current assets -

Inventories

Assets classified as held for sale
Trade and other receivables '
Derivative financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Finance lease liabilities
Derivative financial instruments

Provisions

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Finance lease liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Provisions

Deferred grant

Retirement benefit obligation

Net assets

Equity

Called up share capital
Revaluation reserve
Hedging reserve
Merger reserve

Retained reserves

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company

The notes on pages 21 to 87 form part of these financial statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 04 July 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

M. Brown /~__—’—\
Director -

Company Registration Number 3914810

Note
10

12
14
23
17

15
16
17
23
18

19
21

23
24

19
20
21
23
24
27
29

30

31 March 3| March
2016 2015
£m £m

60.3 - 83,
30,651.5 28,262.9
504.6 421.5
473.0 -
A -
688.0 861.8
32,384.5 29,629.3
68.5 52.2
.- 375.7
{,136.5 529.9
5.1 22.6
104.5 33.0
1,314.6 1,013.4
(2,274.0) {1,774.5)
(83.2) (75.7)
(21.3) (1.3)
(118.8) (102.2)
(2,497.3) {1,953.7)
(60.0) (90.7)
(8,688.8) (8,098.8)
(411.3) (494.8)
(94.9) - (101.3)
(3.8) (2.6)
(13,220.1) {13,022.6)
- (32.0)
(22,478.9) (21,842.8)
8,722.9 6,846.2
7,260.0 5,430.0
310.7 2129
{176.0) {201.0)
466.1 466.1
862.1 938.2
8,722.9 6,846.2
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity

: Revaluation, Hedging Merger  Retained
Share capital reserve reserve reserve  reserves Total
£m fm £m £m £m £m
“At | April 2014 3,930.0 7.1 {174.7) 466.1 - 947.6 5,286.1
‘Loss for the year : - - - - ~(20.0) (20.0)
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension
scheme - ) B - ) - - - 7.2 7.2
Movement in the fair value of derivative. °
financial instruments - - - (33.5) - - {33.5)
Movement in the fair value of derivative A
financial instruments reclassified to profit .
or loss - \ - 7.2 - - 7.2
Net surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment . - 99.2 - - - 99.2
Total comprehensive income/(expense) - 99.2 {26.3) - (12.8) 60.1
Issue of share capital 1,500.0 - - - - ,500.0
Release of revaluation reserve in respect '
of non-historic cost depreciation - (3.4) .- - 3.4 -
Balance at 31 March 2015 5,430.0 2129 {201.0) 466. | 938.2 6,846.2
Loss for the year ‘ - - - - (91.3) (91.3)
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension. T
scheme - . - - - - 5.1 5.1 .
Movement in the fair value of derivative ‘
financial instruments . - - 17.4 - - 17.4
Movement in the fair value of derivative
financial instruments reclassified to profit
orloss A - - 7.6 - - 7.6
Net surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment - 107.9 - - - 107.9
Total comprehensive income/(expense) - 107.9 25.0 - {86.2) 46.7
Issue of share capital 1,830.0 - - - - 1,830.0
Release of reyaluation reserve in respect .
of non-historic cost depreciation - (10.1) - - 10.1 -
Balance at 31 March 2016 , 7,260.0 310.7 . {176.0) 466. | 862.1 8,722.9

-
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Group Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 3/ March

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Increase in value of investment property

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
(Gain} / loss on sale of investment property
Financial income ’

Financial expense

Amortisation of deferred capital grant to meet the depreciation charge

Reversal of share of profits from associates
Reversal of defined benefit pension service costs
Reversal of taxation credit

Cash flow from operating activities before movements in working capital

Increase in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase / (decrease) in provisions A
Net cash generated from operations

Employer contributions to pension scheme
Taxation paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from in\resting activities
 Interest réceived
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties
Acquisition of intangible assets
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Interim funding to third parties in relation to Crossrail
Loan notes acquired '
Investment in share capital of associates
Capital grants received

Net cash utilised by investing activities

Note

Il
10

N ® N bh b

29

29

2016 2015
£m Em
(91.3) (20.0)
871.1 826.3
34.2 24.7
(49.8) (198.1)
© (48.1) (1.0}
(5.4) 0.1
{0.3) (21.7)
317.1 284.3
(625.1) .(598.2)
{25.9) -
(10.3) 12.9
(2.2) -
364.0 309.3
(16.3) {9.6)
48.8 76.4
532.4 (42.3)
17.8 (0.5)
946.7 333.3
17.2) (22.9)
2.2 (0.1)
931.7 310.3
0.3 0.4
3.0 6.2
387.9 181
8.7) (14.0)
(3,322.0) (3,206.2)
(453.4) (381.9)
" (402.7) -
(44.4) -
903.2 [,406.8
(2,936.7) (2,170.6)
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Group Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

Year ended 31 March . 2016 2015
£m . Em

Cash flows from financing activities .
Issue of share capital . 1,830.0 1,500.0

Increase in loans from ultimate parent _ 590.0 650.0
Net repayment of external borrowings - (0.8)
Capital element of finance leases repaid ’ : (76.0) (68.0)
Cash paid on settlement of derivatives . 0.1 ' -
Interest paid ‘ : (267.6) (274.7)
Net cash flow generated from financing activities 2,076.5 1,806.5
Net cash movement in the year 71.5 (53.8)
Net cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 33.0 86.8
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ) 104.5 33.0
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Company Statement of Financial Position

31 March 31 March
2016 2015
’ Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Intangible assets . . 10 38.6. 56.8
Property, plant and equibment ' 1 213.4 191.6
Investment property 12 2.0 1.8
Investment in subsidiary undertakings I3 7,795.0 5,965.0
Trade and other receivables ’ 17 1.3 0.5
, - ' 8,050.3 6,215.7
Current assets -
Inventories : 5 0.3 -
Trade and other receivables ) 17 331.9 350.1
Cash and cash equivalents ' 18 65.9 1.9
398.1 352.0
Current liabilities .
Trade and other payables _ : . 19 . (602.9) (568.9)
Provisions . ' 24 (0.5) {0.9)
(603.4) (569.8)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and'other payables ‘ 19 {16.5) {15.9)
Borrowings . 20 (30.4) (30.4)
Deferred grant ‘ A 27 (112.4) (116.6)
' (159.3) (162.9)
Net assets : 7,685.7 5,835.0.
Reserves _
Share capital ’ ' A 30 7,260.0 5,430.0
Revaluation reserve ' A 67.5 | 46.8
Retained reserves » : 358.2 358.2
Total equity attributabie to owners of the Company ’ 7,685.7 5,835.0

TTL Company is exempt under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from producing an income statement.
~ !

The notes on pages 2| to 87 form part of these financial statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 04 July 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

M. Brown

Director /\—_'—ﬁ
S

Company Registration Number 3914810
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

) Revaluation ‘Retained
Share capital reserve reserves Total
) _Em £m £m - Em -

At | April 2014 - . 3,930.0 23.0 358.2 4,301.2
Loss for the year _ , - R (2.3) (2.3)
Net surplus on revaluation of property, blant and equipment C- 26.1 - 26.1
Total comprehensive income / (expense) ' - 26.1 12.3) 23.8
Issue of share capital 1,500.0 - - 1,500.0
Release of revaluation reserve in respect of non-historic cost L B
depreciation A - (2.3) 2.3 -
Balance at 31 March 2015 . ' -5,430.0 . 46.8 358.2 5,835.0
Loss for the year : . - - (8.2) (8.2)
Net surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - 28.9 - 28.9
Total comprehensive income/(expense) . ' - 28.9 (8.2) : 20.7
Issue of share capital - 1,830.0 - - 1,830.0
Release of revaluation reserve in respect of‘non—historic cost ' ) '
depreciation - (8.2) 8.2 -
Balance at 31 March 2016 ' 7,260.0 © 67.5 358.2 7,685.7

7
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Company Statement of Cash Flows

.Year ended 3/ March .

Cash 'flows from operating activities
Loss for the year

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets
Increase in value of investment property
Financial income

Financial expense

Amortisation of deferred capital grant to meet the depreciation-charge
Cash flow from operating activities before movements in working capital
Decrease in inventories o

Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables

(Decrease} / increase in provisions

Net cash generated from / (utilised by) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received ‘

Acquisition of intangible assets

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Subscription for new shares in subsidiary
Capital grants received

Net cash utilised by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of share capital
Interest paid

Net cash flow generated from financing activities -

Net cash movement in the year
Net cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year

Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note 2016 2015
£m £m
(8.2) (2.3)
I 34,1 37.3
10 26.7 19.1
12 {0.2) (0.2)
(0.2) (0.3)
0.1 0.1
77 (26.4) (37.3)
25.9 16.4
(0.3) -
(9.4 (23.7)
26.5 2.8
{0.4) 0.8
71.1 (3.7)
0.2 03
(7.0) {7.7)
(22.8) (12.9)
(1,830.0)  (1,500.0)
22.6 15.3
{1,837.0) {1,505.0)
1,830.0 1,500.0
(0.1) (0.1)
1,829.9 1,499.9
64.0 (8.8)
1.9 10.7
65.9 1.9
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Accounting Policies

N
]

a) Reporting entity

Transport Trading Limited (“TTL” or the “Company”) is a company domiciled in the- United Kingdom. The
Company’s registration number is 3914810 and its registered office is Windsor House, 42-50 Victoria Street,
London, SWIH OTL.

The consolidated financial statements as at 31 March 2016 include the financial statements of the Company and its

" subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

b) Statement of accounting policies

This section explains the Company's main accounting policies, which, untess otherwise stated, have been applied to

all periods presented in these financial statements.

) /
c) Basis of preparation

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted in the EU.

N

Basis of measurement ) /
)

The accounts are made up to 31 March and have been prepared under the accruals concept and in accordance with
the historical cost accounting convention, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current asset and

financial instruments. ¢ o -

Where items are sufficiently significant by virtue of their size or nature, they are disclosed separately in the financial
statements in order to aid the reader’s understanding of the Group and Company's financial performance.

d) Uses of estimates and judgements ) ' . ,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Adopted IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the Group and Company’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions or
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed below: ’

Post-retirement benefits -

The pension co\sts and defined benefit plan obligations of the Group’s defined benefit plans are calculated on the
basis of a range of assumptions, including the discount rate, inflation rate, salary growth and mortality. Differences
arising as a result of actual experience differing from the assumptions, or future changes in the assumptions will be
reflected in subsequent periods. A small change in assumptions can have a significant impact on the valuation of the

defined benefit obligation. .

Leases

In assessing whether a lease is an operating lease or a finance lease, judgement needs to be exercised in determining
whether or not substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are held by the Company.
Given that finance leases are recognised as liabilities, and operating leases are not, this can have a significant effect
on the reported financiil position of the Group or Company.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

d) Uses of estimates and judgements {continued)
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

When determining whether an arrangement contains a lease, as required by IFRIC 4, judgement needs to be exercised
in determining whether the arrangement conveys the right to use an asset. Given that this could result in additional
finance leases being recognised on the Statement of Financial Position this can have a significant effect on the
reported financial position of the Group or Company.

Classification of investment properties

IAS 40 Investment properties (“IAS 40”) reduires that properties are classified as investment properties where they
are held for the purpose of capital appreciation or to earn rentals. The Group owns a number of commercial
properties as part of its infrastructure where part of the property is leased out to third parties. To comply with IAS
40, judgement needs to be exercised in determining whether these properties. should be classified as investment
" properties. As investment properties are valued at fair value with movements in the fair value being recorded in the
income statement this could have a significant effect on the financial performance of the Group.

Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation, is stated at Ets fair value as
calculated by external professionally qualified surveyors in accordance with Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
(RICS) Guidelines. Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of investment property ‘are included in the income
statement for the period in which they arise.

Office b&lldings

Office buildings held within property, plant and equipment are held at fair value as calculated by external
professionally qualified surveyors in accordance with Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS} Guidelines.
Movements in the fair vatue of the property are taken to the revaluation reserve.

Provisions

Estimation techniques are employed in the calculation of the best estimate of the amount required to settle
obligations, mcludmg determining how likely it is that expenditure will be required by the Group or Company This
can be very complex especially when there is a wide range of possible outcomes.

Useful economic life of property, plant and equipment

When determining the useful economic life of property, plant and equipment, judgement needs to be exercised in
estimating the length of times the assets will be operational.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage certain exposures to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates. In making its assessment and judgements, the Group assesses the effectiveness of
- -the derivatives and changes in their fair values. Note 23 and the accounting policies note on financial instruments
provide detailed information about the key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of financial
instruments, as well as a sensitivity analysis for these assumptions. The directors believe that the chosen valuation
' techniques and assumptions used are appropriate in determining the fair value of financial instruments.
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* Accounting Policies (continued)

e) New standards and interpretations adopted for the first time in these Financial Statements

Standards and interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("|ASB") are only applicable if
endorsed by the EU. The following new amendments have been applied for the first time in these Financial

Statements:

e 'Amendments to IFRS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions'. The amendments to IAS 19
clarify the acco-unting treatment for contributions made by employees or third parties to a defined benefit
plan. According to the amendments, discretionary contributions made by employees or third parties reduce
service cost upon payment of these contributions to the plan. When the formal terms of the plan specify
contributions from employees or third parties, the accounting depends on whether the contributions are
linked to service. If contributions are linked to services they reduce service costs. If they are not linked to
services they affect the remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability;

e 'Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle' (Mandatory for years beginning on
or after | July 2014). The amendments are as follows: '

o

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment. The amendment is to clarify the definition of vesting condition and
market condition to ensure consistent classification of conditions attached to a share based

.payment;

IFRS 3 Business Combinations. The amendment clarifies that contingent consideration should be
measured at fair value at-each reporting date, irrespective of whether or not the contingent
consideration falls within the scope of IFRS 9 or IAS 39. Changes in fair value {other than
measurement period adjustments as defined in IFRS 3) should be recognised in profit and loss;

IFRS 8 Operating Segments. The amendment requires an entity to disclose the judgements made
by management in applying the aggregation criteria to operating segments and clarifies that a
reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments' assets to the entity's assets should only be
provided if information about the amount of the segment assets are regularly provided to the chief
operating decision-maker;

IFRS 13 Fair Value‘ Measurement. The amendment clarifievs' that the issuance of IFRS 13 and
consequential amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short-term
receivables and payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without discounting,
if the effect of discounting is immaterial;

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; IAS 38 Intangible Assets. The amendments remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/amortisation when an
item of property, plant and equipment or intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards
clarify that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of the
carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated depréciation/amortisation'is the difference
between gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking into account accumulated

impairment losses; and

~

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. The amendment clarifies that a managément entity providing key
management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity is a
related party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as related
party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid or payable to the management entity
for the provision of key management personnel services. Disclosure of the components of
compensation to key management personnel that is paid by the management entity to the
management entity's employees or directors is not required;
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Accounting Policies (continued)

e 'Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle' {Mandatory for years beginning on
or after | July 2014). The amendments are as follows:

-o IFRS 3 Business Combinations. The amendment clarifies that IFRS 3 does not apply to the
accounting for the formation of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself;

o IFRS |3 Fair Value Measurement. The amendment clarifies that the scope of the portfolio
exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net
basis includes all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, 1AS
39 or IFRS 9, even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial
liabitities within IAS 32; and

o |AS 40 Investment Property. The amendment clarifies that IAS 40 and IFRS 3 are not mutually
exclusive and application of both standards may be required.

The application of these and any other standards, amendments or interpretations issued by the IASB and applicable
for the first time to these Financial Statements has not had a material impact on the accounts.

f) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following new and revised IFRSs will be applicable in future periods, subject to endorsement where applicable.
These have been issued, by the EU, but have not been applied by the Company in these Financial Statements:

e 'IFRS 9 Financial Instruments' (as revised in 2014). IFRS 9 (as revised in 2014} will supersede 'lAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'. The new standard contains the requirements for three areas:
a) the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, b) impairment methodology
and c) general hedge accounting. With respect to classification and measurement, all recognised financial
assets that are chrrently within the scope of IAS 39 will be subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value. The standard also contains requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and derecognition requirements. With respect to impairment methodology, the revised model
reflects expected credit losses as opposed to the incurred credit losses recognised under 1AS 39. And with
regards to hedge accounting, IFRS 9 l(as revised in 2014) introduces greater flexibility to the types of
transactions eligible, specifically broadening the types-of instruments that qualify as hedging instruments.
The revised standard is mandatory for years beginning on or after | January 2018;

e 'IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts' {mandatory for years commencing on or after | January 2016). This
specifies the accounting for regulatory deferral account balances for entities that recognised regulatory
deferral account balances under their previous GAAP. This does not apply to the TfL Group;

e 'IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers' {mandatory for years beginning on or after | January
2018). IFRS |5 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. It will supersede IAS 18 Revenue, IAS || Construction Contracts, IFRIC |3
Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC |5 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18
Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC 3| Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services.
The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services; -

e 'Amendments to IFRS| | Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations' (mandatory for years
commencing on or after | January 2016). The amendments provide guidance on how to account for the
acquisition of an interest in a joint operation in which the activities constitute a business;
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Accounting Policies (continued)

1

e 'IAS | Disclosure Initiative' {(mandatory for years on or after | January 2016). The amendments clarify the
concept of materiality in practice as the wording of some of the requirements in IAS | has in some cases
been read to prevent the use of judgement;

e “'Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation’
(mandatory for years beginning on or after | January 2016). The amendments to IAS 16 prohibit entities
from using a revenue-based depreciation method for items of property, plant and equipment. The
amendments to IAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an appropriate basis for
amortisation of an intangible asset; ‘

e 'Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS |4 Agriculture: Bearer Plants' (mandatory for years on or after | January
2016);

e 'Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements' (mandatory for years beginning on
or after | January 2016). The amendments focus on separate financial statements and allow the use of the
equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in such statements;

e 'Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture' (mandatory for years beginning on or after | January 2016);

e 'Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception'
(mandatory for years beginning on or after | January 2016). The amendments clarify that the exemption
from preparing financial statements is available to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment
entity, even if the investment entity measures all its subsidiaries at fair value in accordance with {FRS 10.

: Conseq‘uential amendments have also been made to IAS 28 to clarify that the exemption from applying the
equity method is also applicable to an investor in an associate or joint venture if that investor is a subsidiary
of an investment entity that measures all its subsidiaries at fair value; and

e ‘IFRS 16 Leases’ (mandatory for years beginning on or after | January 2019). This standard replaces the
current guidance in IAS 17 on leéses. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is |2 months or less or the
underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS [6’s
approach to lessor accounting remaining substantially unchanged from the IAS | 7 approach.

Other than where indicated above, the Company does not consider that these or any other standards, amendments
or interpretations issued by the IASB, but not yet applicable, will have a significant impact on the Financial
Statements.

g) Going concern )
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Group is dependent on funds provided to-it by Transport for London, its ultimate parent, in order to ensure
working capital requirements are satisfied. Transport for London has indicated that for at least 12 months from the
date of approval of these Financial Statements, it will continue to make such funds available to the Group.

The directors consider that this should enable the Group to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future by meeting its liabilities as they fall due for payment. As with any Group placing reliance on other entities for
financial support, the directors'acknowledge that there can be no certainty that this support will continue, although,
at.the date of approval of these Financial Statements, they have no reason to believe that it will not do so. Based on
this undertaking, the directors believe that it remains appro;;;iate to prepare the Financial Statements on a going
concern basis. ' -
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Accounting Policies (continued)

h) Revenue

Revenue is generated from the provision of travel, the letting of commercial advertising space and the rental of
commercial properties. )

Revenue is measured after the deduction of value added tax (where applicable).
Fare revenue

Revenue from annual or periodic tickets and travel cards is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
on a straight line basis over the period of validity of the ticket or travel card. Revenue received in advance and not
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income is recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and held
within current liabilities receipts in advance for travel cards, bus passes and Oyster cards. Oyster pay as you go
revenue is recognised on usage and one day travel cards and single tickets are recognised on the day of purchase.

Revenue in respect of free and reduced fare travel for the elderly and disabled

Revenue from the London Borough Council and county Authorities in respect of free and reduced fare travel for the
elderly and disabled is recognised as revenue on a straight line basis over the financial year to which the settlement
relates. '

Commercial advertising

Commercial advertising revenue is recognised on ‘an accruals basis in accordance with the detail of the relevant
agreements.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
i) Grants and other funding

Grants and other contributions received towards the cost of capital expenditure are recorded as deferred income on
the Statement of Financial Position and released to the Income Statement over the estimated useful economic life of
the asset to which the grant relates. .

Revenue grants received for the funding of operations are credited to the Income Statement on a'systematic basis to
match costs. -

j) Employee benefits
Defined contribution scheme

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions
to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the Income Statement in
the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans

The defined benefit plans, of which the majority of staff are members, provide benefits based on final pensionable
pay. The assets of schemes are held separately from those of the Group.

On retirement, members of the schemes are paid their pensions from a fund which is kept separate from the Group.
The Group makes cash contributions to that fund in advance of members’ retirement.

Pension scheme assets are measured using current market bid values. Pension scheme liabilities are measured using
a projected unit credit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liability.
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The difference between the value of the pension scheme assets and pension scheme liabilities is a surplus or a

" deficit. A pension scheme surplus is recognised to the extent that it is recoverable and a pension scheme deficit is

recognised in full. The movement in the scheme surplus/deficit is split between operating charges, finance items
and, in the statement of fqtal comprehensive income, actuarial gains and losses. Generally, amounts are charged to
" operating expenditure on the basis of the current service cost of the present employees that are members of the
Schemes.

Defined benefit plans — multi-employer exemption

) For certain defined benefit schemes it is not possible for the Company or Group to identify its share of the
underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. This is because the plan
exposes the participating entities to actuarial risks associated with the current and former employees of other
entities, with the result that there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, plan assets and
cost to individual entities participating in the plan. For this reason, as permitted by the multi-employer exemption in
IAS 19 (revised 20t 1) Employee benefits (“IAS [9R”), these schemes are accounted for as defined contribution
schemes and contributions are charged to the Income Statement as incurred.

Other employee benefits

Other short and long term employee benefits, including holiday pay and long service leave, are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are recognised as an expense over the period in which they accrue.

k) Leases (the Group as lessee) {
Leased assets

Leases under which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised in theAGroup’s Statement of Financial
Position. '

‘

-Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the Income Statement.on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of
the lease. .

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether such an arrangement is or contains a lease. A
specific asset is the subject of a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of that specified
asset. An arrangement conveys the right to use the asset if the arra'ngément conveys to the Group the right to
control the use of the underlying asset. :

At inception or upon reassessment of the arrangement, the Group separates payments and other consideration
required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the b‘,asis of their relative
fair values. If the Group concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, an
asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. Subsequently the
liability is reduced as payfnents are made and an imputed finance charge on the liability is recognised using the
Group'’s incremental borrowing rate.
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The Group has applied the transitional provisions' in IFRIC 4 as permitted under IFRS | First time adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS 1"} to determine whether existing arrangements contain a lease at
the date of transition to Adopted IFRSs based on the facts and circumstances existing at that date.

U} Leases (the Group as lessor)

Rental income from operating leases and initial direct costs are recognised on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. .
m) Financial income and expenses.

Financing and investment income consists of interest income on funds invested and expected return on pension
assets. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in the Income Statement, using the effective interest rate method.

Financing costs comprise the interest expense on borrowings and finance lease liabilities accrued using the effective
interest rate method, and the expected cost of pension scheme liabilities. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets {those necessarily taking a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use) are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are ready for
their intended use. In accordance with IFRS | and IAS 23 Borrowing costs ("IAS 23"), the Group has taken the option
not to capitalise borrowing costs on assets prior to the date of trarisition to IFRS.

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are recognised in the Income Statement using the effective interest rate method.

n) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the Income
Statement except to-the extent that they relate to a business combination, or items recognised dlrectly in equity or
in other comprehenswe income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date and-any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years. )

- Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and
differences relating to investments in. subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that
they will not reverse .in the foreseeable future. In addition, deferred tax is not recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and. liabilities are disclosed net to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the same tax
authority and the Group has the right of set off.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised.
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o) Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than sterling are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the
transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for
exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks.

p) Intangible assets
Goodwill

Where the cost of a business combination exceeds the fair values attributable to the net assets acquired, the
resulting goodwill is capitalised and tested for impairment at each Statement of Financial Position date. Goodwill is
allocated to income-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing.

Other intangible assets

Software costs are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Assets
under construction are measured at cost tess accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is charged to the Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets, from the date that they are available for use, unless such lives are indefinite.

The useful lives and amortisation methods for software costs are as follows:
Software costs Straight-line 3-5 years

q) Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Infrastructure consists of tunnels, viaducts, bridges, stations, track, signalling, bus stations and stands, properties
attached to infrastructure and surplus properties held to facilitate construction of infrastructure.

Infrastructure, plant and equipment and rolling stock are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses.
Assets in the course of construction are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of certain items. of property, plant and equipment was determined by reference to a previous GAAP
valuation. The Group elected to apply the optional exemption allowed under IFRS | to use this previous valuation as
deemed cost at | April 2009, the date of transition.

Office property consists of business properties, used by the Company for its own purposes, which are not limited in
their future use by operational constraints or requirements and which are not integral to the infrastructure (e.g.
offices).

These properties are valued at fair value by external professionally qualified surveyors in accordance with Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Guidelines. Fair value is the pricé that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
measurement methodology assumes the valuation is based on the highest and best use of the asset. Properties are
measured using the income approach by means of the discounted cash flow method, where the expected cash flows
" from the properties are discounted (using a market derived discount rate) to establish the present value of the net
income stream. Office properties are therefore categorised as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy, as the measurement
technique uses significant unobservable inputs to determine the fair value measurements. Valuations are performed
on a rolling basis, with approximately 75 per cent of the portfolio by value being valued each year.
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Movements in the fair value of the property are taken to the revaluation reserve, with the exception of permanent
diminutions in value which are recognised in the Income Statement.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, borrowing costs on qualifying assets for which the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or after | April 2009, and any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use. Where there is a legal obligation to remove the
asset and/or restore the site on which it is located at the end of its useful economic life, the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located are also included in the cost of that asset.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items {(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group, and its cost
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day -
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Income Statement as incurred.

i Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for
cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is recognised in the Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each '
part of an item of property, plant and equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain
that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Tunnels and embankments up to 100 years
Bridgeé and viaducts Gp to 100 years
Track Qp to 50 years
Signalling ) 15-40 years
St'ations ' up to 50 years
Other property 20-50 years

" Rolling stock C 30-50 years,
Lifts and escalators 25-40 years
Plant and equipment 3-40 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Assets under construction and freehold land are not depreciated.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if
appropriate. '

Gains and losses on disposal

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
of disposal with the carrying amount, and are recognised net within other gains and losses in the Income Statement.
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r} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the.acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are defined
as an.asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. - A substantial

period of time has been interpreted as being one year.

i

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Income Statement in the period in which they are incurred.

s) Private Finance Initiative (“PF1”} arrangements

The Group has entered into PFl arrangements with the private sector in relati‘on to the construction, maintenance
and operation of parts of London Underground and Docklands Light Railway infrastructure. In the absence of
alternative guidance, these arrangements are treated as service concession arrangements following the guidance,
from a lessor's point of view, contained in IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements (“IFRIC 12”), an interpretation
under Adopted IFRS.

IFRIC 12 requires the Group to account for infrastructure PFl schemes where it controls the use of the infrastructure

and the residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the arrangement. The Group therefore recognises PFI

- assets as items of property, plant and equipment together with a liability to pay for them. The fair values of services

received under the contract are recorded as operating expenses.

The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using appropriate estimation °
techniques where necessary: '

a) The service charge

b) Repayment of the capital

c) The interest element {using the interest rate implicit in the contract]

Services received

The fair value of services received in the year is recorded in net operating éosts.

Assets ' . . . . ‘ -

Assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment or intangible assets when they come into use. The assets
are measured initially at fair value in accordance with IAS |7 Leases (“IAS 17”). ’

Where the operator enhances assets already recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, the fair value of the
enhancement in the carrying value of the asset is recognised as an asset.

Liabilities . ‘
A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the same amount
as the fair value of the assets and is subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in accordance with IAS | 7.

An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the lease to the opening lease liability for
the year, and is charged to ‘Financial expenses’ within the Income Statement. :

The element of the unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the annual finance
cost and to repay the lease liability over the contract term.

Life cycle replacement N

Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract {‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where
they meet the Group criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are provided by the
operator and are measured initially at their fair value. :

PFl arrangements accounted for as operating leases are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position and are
dealt with as detailed in note j} above.
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t) Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the supply of services or for administrative purposes.

Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is measured at fair value with any changes therein recognised in the Income Statement in the
period in which they arise. When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as property, plant and
equipment, its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting. Investment
properties held at fair value are not subject to depreciation. ‘

Properties are valued at fair value by external professionally qualified surveyors in accordance with Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors (RICS} Guidelines. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The measurement
methodology assumes the valuation is based on the highest and best use of the asset. Properties are measured using
the income approach, by means of the discounted cash flow method, where the expected cash flows from the
properties are discounted {using a market-derived discount rate) to establish the present value of the net income
stream. Properties are therefore categorised as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy, as the measurement technique uses
significant unobservable inputs to determine the fair value measurements. Properties with a carrying value in excess
of £5,000,000 are valued annually. Properties with a value in excess of £250,000 but less than £5,000,000 are
revalued every three years. Properties with a value in excess of £100,000 but less than £250,000 are revalued every
five years.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal. Any gain or loss arisiﬁg on derecognition of the property is
included in the Income Statement in the period in which the property is derecognised. The gain or loss on disposal
of the property is calculated as the difference between the proceeds on disposal and the carrying amount: of the
asset. A '

u) Investment in subsidiaries
The Company's investment in subsidiaries is accounted for at cost and is recognised net of impairment losses.
v} Investment in associated undertakings

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence, but not control. The results and assets and

. liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated accounts using the equity method of accounting from
the date on which the investee becomes an associate. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised on the Statement of Financial Position at cost, and is thereafter adjustéd to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other combrehensive income of the associate.

w) Assets classified as Héld for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered prfncipally through a sale
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued
immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

x) Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of fuel, uniforms, and materials required for the operation and maintenance of
infrastructure. Equipment and materials held for use in a capital programme are accounted for as stock until they are
issued to the project, at which stage they become part of assets under construction.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct tabour
costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
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y) Impairment
Non-financial assets

Impairment occurs when an asset would otherwise be recorded in the Flnanc1al Statements at an amount more than
is recoverable from its use or sale.

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of those assets that are subject to’amortisation to
determine whether there is an indication that any of those assets has suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of any

impairment loss.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Income Statement.
z) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligatién and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the consideration required to settle the obligation at the
Statement of Financial Position date, and are discounted to present value Where the effect is material. . '

7

aa) Financial instruments

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (1AS 39°) are

classified as:

* financial assets at fair value through the Income Statement;
* loans and receivables; or
* available for sale financial assets -

Financial liabilities W|th|n the scope of IAS 39 are classified as either fmanc1al liabilities at fair value- through the
Income Statement or financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

The Group determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this
designation at each financial year end. When financial instruments are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, being the transaction price plus any directly attributable transactional costs. The exception to this.is for
assets and liabilities measured at fair value, where transaction costs are immediately expensed. The subsequent
measurement of financial instruments depends on their classification as follows:

7

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted on
an active market, do not qualify as trading assets and have not been designated as either ‘fair value through the
Income Statement’ or available for sale. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method if the time value of money is significant. Gains and losses are recognised in the [ncome Statement when the
loans and receivables are derecognised orAimpaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Trade and other receivables

=

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequ;ntly at amortised cost. For trade
receivables this is after an allowance for estimated impairment. The allowance is based on objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to recover all amounts due, through a review of all accounts and prior experience of
collecting outstanding balances. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance are recognised in the Income
Statement.

The fair value of trade and othér receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the
market rate of interest at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for disclosure purposes.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with maturity of less than or equal to three
months.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

All non-derivative financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. Non-derivative
financial liabilities are initially recognised on the settlement date at the fair value of the consideration received, less
directly attributable issue costs. After initial recognition, non-derivative financial liabilities are subsequently -
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Income
Statement when the liabilities are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are classified as financial liabilities-measured at amortised cost.
Obligations under finance leases and PFl arrangements

All obligations under finance leases and. PFl arrangements are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost. ’

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is
impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset, and that loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset
that can be estimated reliably. Individually significant assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed

through the Income Statement.

All impairment losses are recognised in the Income Statement.

Defivative financial instruments

The Group enters into derivative instruments to manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates and interest rates. The Group does not hold or issue derivative instruments for speculative purposes. The use
of. derivatives is governed by Transport for London, the Company’s ultimate parent, through policies that are
approved by the TfL Finance and Policy Committee. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in the Income Statement immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the Income Statement depends on
the nature of the hedge relationship. ‘

The Group designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm
commitments (fair value hedges), hedges of highly probable forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency risk
or firm commitments (cashflow hedges). '

The fair value of hedging derivatives is classified as a non-current asset or a_non-current liability if the remaining
maturity of the hedge relationship is more than |2 months and as a current asset or a current liability if the remaining
maturity of the hedge relationship is less than 12 months. Derivatives not designated into an effective hedge
relationship are classified as a current asset or a current liability.

Transport Trading Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 34



Accounting Policies (continued)

Hedge accounting

The'Group designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, as either fair value hedges or cash flow
hedges.

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, at inception of the transaction the Group formally designates .and
documents the hedging relationship, which includes the Group's risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge, identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged
and how the Group will assess the hedging mstrument s effectiveness. In addition, an instrument is only designated
as a hedge when it is expected to be highly effectlve in offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to
the hedged risk as designated and documented and where effectiveness is capable of reliable measurement.

_-At the inception of the hedge relationship the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of the hedged item. ' )

Derlvatwes qualify for hedge accounting if changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedging instrument
attributable to the hedged risk are expected to be highly effective in offsetting the changes in the fair value or cash.
flows of the hedged item on a prospective basis and on a retrospective basis where actual results are within a range
of 80 per cent to |25 per cent. Where derivatives or portions of hedges do not qualify for hedge accounting, they
are recorded at fair value through the Income Statement.

Cash flow hedges

Derivative instruments are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the Group's exposure to variability in cash
flows attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction. Derivative instruments qualifying for treatment as cash flow hedges are pnncupally interest rate swaps,
gilt locks and foreign currency forward exchange contracts

The effective portion of ch‘anges in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
deferred in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income
Statement. : :

Amounts deferred in reserves‘are recycled in profit or loss in the periods when the hedged items (ti1e hedge asset or
liability) are recognised in the Income Statement.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging instrument relationship, or the hedging
instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised or no longer qualifies for hedge account. Any cumulative gain or
loss deferred in equity at that time remains in equity and is recoénised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss
that was deferred in equity is recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

ab) Fair Value Measurement

IFRS |3 Fair Value measurement requires that financial instruments that are measured in the statement of financial
position at fair value are measured by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

e Level | Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markéts for identical assets

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions .on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the group is the current bid price. '
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o Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over the counter
derivatives or infrequently traded li§ted inve_stn)énts) are determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable the instrument is included in level 2. ' -

o Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) '

Specific valuation techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value of the
remaining financial instruments.

In the absence of quoted market priées, derivatives are valued by using quoted forward prices for the underlying
commodity/currency and discounted using quoted interest rates (both as at the close of business on the balance
sheet date). Hence derivatives are within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as defined within IFRS (3. A
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Notes to the Financial Statements

|~ Group revenue
Year ended 31 March

Fares

Revenue in respect of free travel for the elderly and the
disabled

Charges to London boroughs

Charges to transport oper(ators.
Commercial advertising receipts

Rents receivable _

Museum and other retail incom,e
Contributions from third parties to operating costs
Ticket and photocard commission income
ATM and car parking income

Training and specialist services

Cycle hire scheme

Other

Other revenue comprises numerous other travel services, none of which are sufficiently material to warrant

separation in the analysis above.

2016 % of 2015 % of
£m total £m total
4,258.4 86.6 3,98’7.2 85.6
328.3 6.7 321.0 6.9
2.2 - 2.7 0.1
10.8 0.2 " 9.2 0.2, |
(149 2.3 169.5 3.6
68.6 1.4 57.4 1.2
8.6 0.2 8.4 0.2
10.1 0.2 2.0 -
34.3 0.7 3.8 0.3
15.9 0.3 12.3 0.3
9.0 0.2 12.0 0.3
16.2 0.3 15.6 0.3
40. | 0.9 45.2 1.0
4917.4 (00.0 | 4,656.3 100.0
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 Group operating loss
Year ended 3/ March ‘ ‘ -

' The operating loss is stated after charging/(crediting):

Capital items

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — owned

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — leased

~ Release of grant to meet the depreciation charge on the historical cost of
depreciated fixed assets

Othe} operating costs

Employee costs

Payments under operating leases

Inventory expensed durian the year

Auditor's remuneration

Fees for the audit of these financial statements
Fees for the audit of subsidiary financial statements

Fees for non-audit services

Note

27

2016 2015
£fm fm
34.2 24.7
828.2 783.3
42.9 43.0
(625.1) (598.2)
,469.1 [,444. |
73.9 51.7
67.0 63.1
0.6 0.8
0.1 0.1

- 0.4

0.7 1.3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

35 Group grant income

Year ended 31 March 2016 2015
£m Em
Grant from' Tra'nsport for London to fund operations 807.5 786.1
4  Group other gains and losses
Year ended 3/ March o 2016 2015
Note £m Em
Change in fair value of investment properties 12 49.8 198.1
Net gain / (loss) on disposal of investment properties ‘ 5.4 (0.1)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 48.1 1.0
' 103.3 199.0
5 Group employee costs
Year ended 31 March 2016 2015
The average number of persons employed in the year were: Number Number*
Bus operations 1,049 1,096
London Underground 17,056 16,553
Rail operations 243 181
Crossrail 656 638
Tube Lines 1,912 1,877
Group services 885 823
Victoria Coach Station ' - 87 82
Other activities 112 109
Total 22,000 21,359
Their aggregate rem;meration cdmprised: . L, Note £m Em*
Wages and salaries 1,132.6 1,096.9
Social security costs 107.9 103.2
Pension costs ‘ | 29 . 228.6 241.0
| 1,469. |,444.1

* Employee numbers and costs for 2014/15 have been restated to exclude the costs of British Transport Police
Authority staff and officers working on the London Underground. Costs of these individuals are now included as

non-staff costs within the net operating costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

6 Directors' emoluments
Year ended 3! March ’

Number of directors who were remunerated by the Group during the year:

The directors received no emoluments or benefits from the Company.

Directors’ emoluments and benefits were borne by Transport for London for six directors {2014/ | S five).

7/  Group financial income

Year ended 3/ March .

Note

Net fair value movement on derivative financial instruments not subject to hedge
accounting

Other.

8 Group financial expenses

Year ended 31 March
Note
Interest payable on external loans and derivative financial instruments
Interest payable to Transport for'London
_Interest on finance lease liabilities
Contingent rentals on PFl liabilities

Net fair value movement on derivative financial instruments not subject to hedge
accounting '

Net interest on defined benefit obligation . . 29

Less amounts capitalised into qualifying assets ’ Il

2016 2015
Number Number
2016 2015
£m £m

- 21.3

0.3 0.4
0.3 21.7
2016 2015
£m " Em
30.1 30.9
304.1 273.8
38.8 43.6
8.3 8.3
4|.4 -
0.6 .4
423.3 358.0
(106.2) (73.7)
317.1 284.3

The interest rates charged on loans from Transport for London range between | 88% per cent and 4.4 per cent

(20|4/I 5 1.73 per cent and 4.5 per cent).
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Nqies to the Financial Statements (continued)

9 Taxation

The Company and its subsidiaries are assessable individually to taxation in accordance with current tax legislation. All
companies, with the exception of Crossrail Limited, are able to claim group relief.

a) Corporation tax - Group

The Group tax [credit)/charge for the year, based on the rate of corporation tax of 20 per cent (2014/15 21 per cent)
comprised; . ‘ : ’ '

¢

Group Group

Year ended 3/ March ' 2016 2015
! £m £m .
Current tax
Adjustments in respect, of-prior years ’ ' (2.2) -
Total income tax credit for the year . . (2.2) -
Reconciliation of tax credit \ . ' -
Group Group

Year ended 3! March - : 2016 2015

o fm £m
Loss before tax o (93.5) {20.0)
Loss before tax multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20% ) ’
(2014/15 21%) (18.7) (4.2)
Effects of: , . '
Non-taxable and non-deductible items ' ' - (1.1) (0.2)
Amount credited to current tax for which no deferred tax was recognised- ‘ 25.0 (13.6)
Utilisation of tax losses brought forward v (9.2) -
Tax losses carried forward for whi;h no deferred tax was recognised : . 4.0 18.0
Adjustments in respect of prior years - o - (2.2) -
Total tax credit for the year ’ (2.2) -

b} Unrecognised deferred tax assets - Group

The Group has a potential net deferred tax asset of £1,500.2m (2015 £1,593.6m) in respect of the following items:

. ‘ Group " Group
Year ended 31 March . 2016 2015
‘ ~£m £m
Deductible temporary differences - ‘ 54(.6 527.6
Tax losses ' : 958.6 1,066.0
. 1,500.2 £,593.6

The tax losses and the deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not considered probable that there will be
future taxable profit available against which the benefits can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

9 Taxation (continued)

c) Movements in recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year - Group

Deferred tax assets have been recognised to the extent of the deferred tax liabilities at the balance sheet date. Their

movements during the years were in respect of the following items:

Fbr the yéar ended 31 March 2016
Deferred tax assets
Deferred government grant

' Derivativé financial instruments

Property, plant and equipment - accelerated capital allowances

Deferred tax liabilities

. Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties - potential capital gain
Assets held for sale - potential capital gain
Other

Net deferred tax asset/(liability)

For the year ended 3| March 2015

Deferred tax assets

Deferred government grant

Derivative financial instruments

Property, plant and equipment - accelerated capital allowances

\

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties - potential capital gain
Assets held for sale - potential capital gain
Other '

Net deferred tax asset/(liability)

Movement

Balance at Balance at
| April in year 31 March
£m fm £m
2,080.0 {237.7) 1,842.3
36.0 {0.7) 35.3
354.2 {83.5) 270.7
2,470.2 (32190  2,148.3
(2,318.0) 247.5 {2,070.5)
(77.0) (0.8) (77.8)
(75.1) 75.1 -
{0.1) 0.1 -
(2,470.2) 321.9 (2,148.3)
1,990.0 90.0 2,080.0
35.0 1.0 36.0
3539 03 354.2
2,378.9 91.3 2,470.2
(2,261.3) {56.7) (2,318.0)
(113.8) 36.8 {77.0)
‘ - (75.1) {75.1)
(3.8) 3.7 (0.1)
(2,378.9) (91.3) (2,470.2)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

9 Taxation (continued)

The key movements in the period were due to the following:

* In general the level of all deferred tax assets and liabilities has decreased due to the reduction in the tax rate

used for calculation.

*  The deferred tax liability arising on investment properties, including those heid as available for sale, has
decreased due to the disposal of property at Earls Court.

«  The property, plant and equipment deferred tax asset and liability have decreased in the period due to

assets acquired in the year, movements in the market value of assets held and capital altowances claimed.

* . Included within the deferred tax balances for property, plant and equipment and investment properties is
the deferred tax on revaluations of £107.9m recognised in other comprehensive income.

«  The deferred tax asset arising in respect of denvatlve financial instruments has decreased due to movement
in the fair value of derivatives.

d} Unrecognised deferred tax assets - Company
The Company has a potential deferred tax asset of £13.2m (2015 £21.2m). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised as it is not considered probable that there will be future taxable profit available against which the unused

tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current
tax legislation.

The potential deferred tax asset can be attributed to the following:

2016 2015
£m £m
Deductible temporary differences . . . (t.1) 0.1
Tax losses ’ 14.3 211
Deferred tax asset : _ . 132 21.2

The Corporation Tax rate was reduced from 23 per cent to 2| per centon | April 20I.4, and from 21 per cent to 20
per cent on | April 2015. On 15 July 2015 further legislation was enacted, setting the Corporation Tax rate at |9 per
cent for the years starting | April 2017, 2018 and 2019 and at | 8 per cent for the year starting | April 2020. In
March 2016 the government issued a proposal to further reduce the main rate of Corporation Tax to’l 7 per cent.
This reduction, however, has not yet been enacted. As the Group and Company'’s deferred tax balances are not
expected to be settled until after April 2020, deferred tax balances at 3| March 2016 have therefore been calculated
at a rate of |8 per cent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

|0 Intangible assets

a) Group intangible assets

Cost or valuation

At | April 2014 ’

Additions

Transfers between asset classes

Transfer from property, plant and equipment
Disposals

At 3| March 2015

Additions

Transfers between asset classes

Transfer from property, plant and equipment
At 31 March 2016 -

Amortisation and impairment
At | April 2014 ‘

Charge for the year

Disposals

At 31 March 2015

Charge for the year

At 3| March 2016

Net book value at 31 March 2016
Net book value at 3| March 2015.

Note

Intangible
Software : assets under
costs ‘Goodwill construction Total
£m Em Em £m
106.8 349.2 37.9 4939
73 - 6.7 140
30.0 - (30.0) -
.4 - 5.5 6.9
{0.2) - - (0.2)
145.3 349.2 20.1 5146
6.3 - 2.5 8.8
21.2 - (21.2) -
l.1 - 1.5 2.6
173.9 349.2 2.9 526.0
57.8 349.2 - 407.0
24.7 - - 24.7
(0.2) - - 0.2
82.3 349.2 - 431.5
<34.2 - - 34.2
116.5 349.2 - 465.7
57.4 - 2.9 60.3
63.0 - 20. 83.1

Assets under construction comprise software assets under development.
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|0 Intangible assets
bl Company intangible assets

,

Cost or valuation

At | April 2014 N
Additions

Transfers between asset classes

Transfer from property, plant and equipment
At 31 March 2015 ’
Additions

Transfers between asset classes

Transfer from property, plant and equipment

At 3{ March 2016

Amortisation and impairment
At | April 2014

Charge for the year

At 3| March 2015

Charge for the year

At 3| March 2016

Net book value at 31 March 2016
‘Net book value at 31 March 2015
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~Intangible

Software assets under J

costs construction Total

Note £m £m Em
58.1 25.7 83.8

6.7 I'.O 7.7

30.0 (30.0) -

' I‘l ‘- 7.0 7.0
94.8 3.7 98.5

4.8 2.2 7.0

4.5 {4.5) -

"o - 1.5 1.5
104.1 2.9 107.0

22.6 - 22.6

19.1 - 190

41.7 - 41.7

26.7 - 26.7

68.4 - 68.4
35.7 /2‘9 38.6 -

53.1 3.7 56.8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. Pr_operty, plént and equipment

. a) Group property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2016 comprised the following elements:

Infrastructure
and office Plant and Assets under
buildings Rolling stock  equipment construction Total
Note fm £m £Em £m £m
Cost or valuation ‘ A
At | April 2015 24,632.6 4,865.7 1,386.8 9,398.7 40,283.8
Additions . . 599 0.8 118.3 3,031.6 3,210.6
| Transfers between asset classes 771.9 - 582.1 47.1 (1,401.1) -
Transfers to investment properties 12 (2.3) 4‘ - - (30.2) (32.5)
Transfer to intangible assets : 0 . - - (2.6) {2.6)
Disposals ‘ (74.7) (238.0) (17.4) - (330.1)
Revaluation - ” 957 - - - 95.7
* At 31 March 2016 | . 25,483.1 5,210.6 1,534.8 10,996.4 43,224.9
Depreciation
At | April 2015 9,093.7 2,060.6 - 866.6 - 12,020.9
Charge for the year 2 6698 127:8 73.5 - 871.1
Disposals (63.9) (225.1) (17.4) - (306.4)
Revaluation : . (12.2) - - - (12.2)
At 3| March 2016 9,687.4 1,963.3 922.7 - 12,573.4
Net book value at 31 March 2016 I5,795.7‘ 3,247.3 - 6l2.1 10,996.4 30,651.5
Net book value at 3v| March 2015 15,538.9 2,805.1 520.2 9,398.7 28,262.9
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|l Property, plant and equipment (continued)

b) Group property, plant and equipment at 3| March 2015 comprised the following elements:

Infrastructure
and office . Plant and Assets under :
buildings Rolling stock = equipment construction’ Total
Note £m £m Em £m £m
Cost or valuation
. At | April 2014 . 23,714.6 4,525.1 1,255.2 7,819.7 37.314.6
Additions . ‘ 82.7 - 99.2 3,054.5 3,236.4
Transfers between asset classes 1,036.3 A 377.1 ' -SS.I (1,468.5) -
Transfers to intangible assets 10 - - 0.1 {7.0) (6.9)
Disposals \ {296.0) (36.5) (22.8) - {355.3)
Revaluation . 95.0 - - - 95.0
At 3| March 2015 . 24,632.6 4,865.7 1,386.8 9,398.7 40,283.8
Depreciatién
At | April 2014 ' \ 8,747.2 1,980.3 802.8 - 11,530.3
Charge for the year 2 632.3 116.8 . 77.2 - 826.3
Transfers between asset classes {9.2) - 9.2 - -
Disposals | (272.4) (36.5) (22.6) - (331.5)
Revaluation ' ' (4.2) - - - (4.2)
At 3| March 2015 9,093.7 2,060.6 866.6 - 12,020.9

¢} Capitalisation of borrowing costs - Group

Borrowing costs are included in the costs of qualifying assets to the extent that the asset is funded by borrowings.
The Group opted to use the date of transition to IFRS (I April 2009) as the effective date for applying IAS 23
Borrowing costs (‘|AS 23’). The total borrowing costs capitalised during the year were £106.2m (2015 £73.7m). The
cumulative borrowing costs capitalised are £303.3m (2015 £197.Im). '

'd) Capital commitments - Groub

At 3| March 2016, the Group had capital commitments which are contracted for but not provided for in the financial

statements amounting to £3,939.3m (2015 £3,504.0m).
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|| Property, plant and equipment (continued)

e} Leased assets - Group

The net book value above includes the following amounts in respect of PFl and other leased assets:

Infrastructure .
and office
) buildings  Rolling stock Total
Gross cost . : “Em £m £m
PFl assets : ' : 756.2 . 452 801.4
Other leased assets ‘ ‘ - - 407.7 407.7
756.2 452.9 1,209.1
" Depreciation . ,
PFl assets . . 289.2 36.9 - 326.1
Other leased assets ) - 145.1 145.1
' ' 289.2 182.0 471.2
Net book value at 31 March 2016 . 467.0 270.9 737.9

Net book value at 31 March 2015 495.3 285.5 780.8

3

f) Group office buildings

The fair value of office buildings at 31 March 2016 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out at that
date by Cushman & Wakefield, a property valuation company not connected with the Group, and by chartered
surveyors working for TfL. Values are calculated under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy using a discounted cash flow
approach and are based on current rental income plus anticipated uplifts at the next rent review, lease expiry or
break option, taking into consideration lease incentives. Uplifts and the discount rate are derived from rates implied
: by recent market transactions on similar properties. In estimating fair value, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use. There were no transfers of properties in or out of level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
during the year (2014/15 none). '

"+ Properties are valued in accordance with the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards UK January 2014 {revised April
2015) published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

Valuations are performed on a rolling basis, with approximately 75 per cent of the portfolio by value being valued
each year. ) ’

The value of these buildings at 31 March 2016 was £342.8m (2015 £248.0m) and the histprit cost was £33.6m (2015
£35.0m). .

A related revaluation gain for the year of £107.9m (2014/15 £99.2m) has been recognised within other
comprehensive income and expenditure. :
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||  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

"g Company property, plant and equipme.nt at 31 March 2016 comprised the following elements:

-Infrastructure
and office Plant and Assets under
buildings  equipment construction * Total N

Note £m £m ~Em £m
Cost or valuation . - ‘ e .
At | April 2015 185.2 246.4 12.8 444.4
Additions - 1.0 27.5 28.5
Transfers between asset classes i.9 3.6 - (5.5) -
Transfer to intangible assets . - - (1.5) (1.5)
Revaluation _ 19.6 - ‘ - . 19.6
At 31 March 2016 ] 206.7 251.0 33.3 491.0
Depreciation
At | April 2015 65.3 187.5 - 252.8
Charge for the yéar : 18.4 _& 5.7 - 34.1
Revaluation ' {9.3) : - - {9.3)
At 31 March 2016 74.4 203.2 - 277.6
Net book value at 31 March 2016 132.3 47.8 . 53.3 213.4
Net book value at 31 March 2015 119.9 589 . 128 191.6
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1 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

h) Company property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2015 comprised the fotlowing elements:

Infrastructure
and office Plant and Assets under

buildings  equipment construction Total
Note £Em £m £m £m

Cost or valuation _ A .
At | April 2014 160.0 224.2 355 . 419.7
Additions : . 0.6 1.3 7.1 9.0
-Transfers between asset classes 1.9 209 (22.8) -
Transfer to intaﬁgible assets 10 - - (7.0) (7:0)
Revaluation 22.7 ) - - 22.7
At 3| .March 2015 185.2 246.4 12.8 444 4

Depreciation

At | April 2014 49.7 169.2 - 2189
Charge for the year 19.0 - 183 - ‘ 37.3
Revaluation (3.4) - - (3.4)
At 3| March 2015 : 65.3 187.5 - 252.8

i) Capitalisation of borrowing costs - Company

Direct bérrowing costs are included in the cost of qualifying assets to the extent that the asset is funded by
borrowings, Total borrowing ¢costs capitalised during the year were £nil_(20 {5 £nil). The cumulative borrowing costs
capitalised are also £nil (2015 E£nil).

jl Capital commitments - Company

At 31 March 2016, the Company had capital commitments which are contracted for but not provided for in the
-financial statements amounting to £6.7m (2015 £13.0m).

k)] Leased assets — Company
The Company did not have any PFl or other leased assets as at 31 March 2016 and 201 5.

) Office buildings - Company

The fair value of office buildings at 31 March 2016 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out at that
date by Cushman & Wakefield, a property valuation company not connected with the Company, and by chartered
surveyors working for TfL. Values are calculated under level 3 of the fair value hiérarchy dsing a discounted cash flow
approach and are based on current rental income plus anticipated uplifts at the next rent review, lease expiry or
break option, taking into consideration lease incentives. Uplifts and the discount rate are derived from rates implied
by recent market transactions on similar properties. In estimating fair value, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use. There were no transfers of properties in or out of level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
during the year (2014/15 none). Valuations are performed on a rolling basis, with approximately 75 per cent of the
portfolio by value being valued each year.

The value of these buildings at 31 March 2016 was £81.3m {2015 £61.7m) and the historic cost was £13.7m (2015
£14.8m).
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|2 Investment properties

Group
,Note £m
Valuation i _ ‘
At | April 2014 A ‘ S S~ 576l
Additions ' _ . 273
Transfer to property, plant and equipment o E - (375.7)
Disposals . ' - e (4.3)
Revaluation ' 4 198.1
At 3| March 2015 . ~ 421.5
Additions : 5.1
Transfer from property, plant and equipment _ "o - 32,5
Disposals ‘ {4.3)
Revaluation ) . ‘ ' 4 . 49.8
At 31 March 2016 | ‘ © 504.6

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March 2016 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out at that date by Cushman & Wakefield, a property valuation company not connected with the Group.

Values are calculated under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy using a discount cash flow approach and are based on
current rental income plus anticipated uplifts at the next rent review, lease expiry or break option, taking into
consideration lease incentives. Uplifts and the discount rate are derived from rates implied by recent market
transactions on similar properties. In estimating fair value, the highest and best use of the properties is their current

use.

Properties are valued in accordance with the Valuation Standards published by the Royal Institution of Chartered

" Surveyors. Properties with a carrying value in excess of £5,000,000 are valued annually. Properties with a value in
excess-of £250,000 but less than-£5,000,000 are revalued every three years. Properties with a value in excess of
£100,000 but less than £250,000 are revalued every five years.

The Group’s investment properties are let on a tenant repairing basis. The Group’s maintenance obligations are

limited to common areas and vacant property units.

Company
Em
Valuation )

At | April 2014 ) : ' .6
Revaluation ' - ‘ 0.2
At3l March 2015 | 1.8
Revaluation < - - C 02

" At31March2016 | | 2.0

The Company's investment property relates to Kingsbury Parade.

- )
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|3 Investment in subsidiary undertakings
Company Company
2016 2015

fm - £m,

5,965.0  4,465.0

At 1 April o .
Additions ' , A 1,830.0 1,500.0
At 31 March | 7,795.0  5965.0

During the year, the Group invested £1,830.0m {2014/15 £1,500.0m)} in Crossrail share capital.
i .
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13 Investment in subsidiary undertakings (continued)

The Company's principal subsidiaries are;

Subsidiaries

London Underground Limited*
LUL Nominee BCV Limited*
LUL Nominee SSL Limited*

Tube Lines Limited*
Tube Lines Pension Scheme Trustees
Limited

Rail for London Limited*"
Docklands Light Railway Limited (DLR}*
City Airport Rail Enterprises Limited*

City Airport Rail Enterprises {Holdings)
Limited*

Woolwich Arsenal Rail Enterprises Limited*

Woolwich Arsenal Rail Enterprises
{Holdings) Limited*

Tramtrack Croydon Limited*

London Bus Services Limited*

London Buses Limited*

London Dial-a-Ride Limited*

Victoria Coach Station Limited

London River Services Limited*

" Crossrail Limited

Crossrail 2 Limited*

Transport for London Finance Limited *

London Transport Museum Limited

Ve

Principal activity

Passenger transport by underground train
Maintenance of underground lines
Maintenance of underground lines

Maintenance of underground lines

Pension Fund Trustee
Passenger transport by rail
Passenger transport by rail

Construction and maintenance of DLR lines
Holding company
Construction and maintenance of DLR lines

Holding company

Passenger transport by tram

Passenger transport by bus

Dial-a-Ride

Dormant company

Coach station

Pier operator '

Construction of Crossrail infrastructure
Dormant company

Manages financial risk of the Group

Charitable company

London Transport Museum {Trading) Limited Trading company -

TTL Properties Limited* ]
TTL Earls Court Properties Limited*

Holding company
Holding company

The financial statements of all the above companies are lodged at Companies House. *

Percentage

Registered

number

100%
100%
100%
100%

" 100%

100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

01900907
06221959
06242508
03923425

05024749
05965930 .
02052677
04411523

04602333
05372373

05357070
03092613 .
03914787
01900906
02602192
00205610
03485723
04212657
09580635
06745516
06495761

06527755
08961151
08951012.

* All outstanding liabilities of these undertakings as at 31 March 2016 have been provided with a parent company
guarantee under s.479C of the Companies Act 2006. Their individual financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016 were therefore entitled to exemption from audit under s.479A of the Companies Act 2006.
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|4 Investment in associated undertakings

The Group holds a 37 per cent holding in the ownership and voting rights of Earls Court Partnership Limited (ECP), a
property development company, incorporated in England and Wales. Through its voting rights and representation on
the Board of Directors of ECP, the-Group has significant influence but not control over the relevant activities of ECP.
The Group's investment is therefore accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated accounts.

In early 2015 ECP commenced trading and, on 2 April 2015, the Group granted a 999 year lease over land at Earl's
Court into ECP. Simultaneously, the Group also contributed funds totalling £44.4m to ECP. In consideration ECP
issued share capital to a value of £44.4m to the Group, and non-interest bearing equity loans totalling £375.6m. The
loan notes are non-interest bearing and have no fixed repayment date. They have therefore been treated in these
financial statements as an investment in the equity of ECP.

Between 2 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 the Group has invested a further £27.1 m in equity loans of ECP. The
Group’s percentage holding, however, remains unchanged at 37 per cent.

The financial year end of Earls Court Partnership Limited is 31 December. For the purposes of applying the équity
method of accounting, the financial statements of Earls Court Partnership Limited for the year ended 31 December
2015 have been used, and approﬁriate adjustments made for the effects of significant transactions between that
date and 31 March 2016. '

Summarised financial information in respect of the Earls Court Partnership Limited is set out below:

Balance sheet of Earls Court Partnership Limited at the 100% level

Group Group

2016 2015

£m £m

Short-term assets ' 27.8 -

Long-term assets ‘ : ‘ ‘ 1,285.7- -

Short-term liabilities (6.1) -

Long-term liabilities (29.1) -

Total net assets ) 1,278.3 -
Reconciliation of net assets to amounts included in the consolidated Group accounts

Group Group

2016 2015

£fm £m

Net assets at 100% 1,278.3 -

Percentage held by the TfL Group 37% 37%

Carrying amount of the Group's equity interest in Earls Court Partnership Limited 473.0 -
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| 4. Investment in associates (continued)

Group share of comprehensive income and expenditure of Earls Court Partnership Limited

Group Group

2016 2015

£m £m

Group share of profit or loss from continuing operations 25.9 -
Group share of other comprehensive income - -

‘ Total Group share of comprehensive income and expenditure for the year v 259 -
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|5 Inventories

) Group Group

2016 2015

‘ £m . £m

Raw materials and consumables ' ' 67.3 51.4
Goods held for resale ' : 1.2 0.8
' 68.5 . 522

There is no material difference between the Statement of Financial Position value of inventories and their net ‘
realisable value. : ’

Company Company

2016 2015
- £m £m
Raw materials and consumables _ ’ ) 0.3 -

There is no material difference between the Statement of Financial Position value of inventories and their net
realisable value. '

|6 Assets classified as held for sale

Group Group
2016 2015
Note £m Em
Balance outstanding at start of year ' ' 375.7 -
Assets newly classified as held for sale:
Investment properties . ' . 12 - 375.7
Disposals: 4
Investment properties . (375.7) - -
- 375.7

The Company did not have any assets classified as held for sale.

On 2 April 2015 the Group éranted a 999 year lease over land at Earl's Court into its associated undertaking, ECP, in
return for share capital and non-interest bearing equity loans issued by ECP totalling £375.7m. ECP is a limited
company, registered in England and Wales, established to develop the Earls Court Village site in West London. The
TfL Group holds a 37 per cent interest in the issued share capital of ECP, with 63 per cent held by a subsidiary of the
Capco group. ' ' :
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|7 . Trade and other receivables

Group Group
2016 2015
Current ‘ £m £m
Trade receivables ' ) 107.2 71.4
Amounts due from ultimate parent 100.2 146.0
Other tax and social security l . 858 77.9
Grant debtors . . 4.2 4.5
‘Amounts due relating to sale of non-current assets - 7.4 9.9
Other receivables ‘ i : ' : 686.8 85.6
Prepayments . : 90.9 115.5
Capital debtors ) 37.7 6.5
Accrued income : ’ 16.3 12.6
. . : 1,136.5 529.9

Non-current

Other receivables ' o 660.7 821.3
Prepayments ‘ 27.3 40.5
688.0 861.8

Other short and long-term receivables include funds totalling £1,285.4m (2015 £832.0m) advanced to Network Rail
Infrastructure Limited to provide interim financing for the construction of assets related to the Crossrail project.
£453.4m was advanced at periodic intervals during 2015/16 {£381.9m in 2014/15). The receivable is non interest
bearing and has been discounted to its fair value of £1,277.5m (2015 £821.3m) using a discount rate of 0.633 per

cent (2015 1.125 per cent). It is repayable-in six equal instalments with the final instalment falling due on 30

September 2017.

Company . Company
2016 2015
Current : A - £m Em
Trade receivables : : » V - 60.4 42.9
Capital debtor 2.0 -
Amounts due from fellow group undertakings 240.8 241 .}
Other tax and social security 9.3 6.1
Other receivables Yy 7.8 48.4
Prepayments . : (0.5 10.4
Accrued income i ' I.1 1.2
. 331.9 350.1
Non-current » ' \ '
Prepayments : o ’ L3 0.5
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|8 Cash and caéh e.qu\iv'alents

Cash at bank

Cash in hand and in transit

.

Cash at bank

Cash in hand and in transit

Group ' Group

2016 2015

- £m Em

- 81.5 13.7
23.0 19.3

104.5 33.0

Company Company

2016 2015

£m £m

65.5 1.3

0.4 0.6

65.9 1.9
)
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|9 Trade and other payables

Group Group
2016 2015
Current . ' £m £m
Trade payables ' 125.2 90.8 .
Capital works - ‘ : . 550.0 617.8
Retentions on capital contracts ' 7.9 1.0
Amounts dué to ultimate parent ) - . “ . 618.7 181.5
Receipts in advance for travelcards, bus passes and Oyster cards 411.4 3949
Wages and salaries 109.4 90.4
Interest accruals 4.5 4.5
Other deferred income - A 41.9 34.6
Other taxation and social security 53.1 26.5
Capital grants received in advance . ’ 1.5 -
Accruals and other payables 4 340.4 332.5
2,274.0 | ,774.‘5
Non-current
Retentions on capital contracts | ‘ 35.1 49.3.
Trade payables . 8.4 8.8
Other deferred income ' ) ' 8.5 9.6
Accruals and other payables 8.0 23.0

60.0 90.7

Company Company

2016 2015

"Current ‘ . . ‘ o £m " fm

Trade payables 27.7 9.0

Capital works A 9.1 1.4

Amounts due to fellow Group undertakings ’ 93.5 97.8

Receipts in advance for travelcards, bus passes and Oyster cards 404.7 394.8

Wages and salaries ) . 2.4 - 4.0

Other deferred income . . 20.8 19.7

Other taxation and social security : 0.1 03

- Capital grants received in advance ' 0.4 -

Accruals and other payables » 44.2 41.9

602.9 568.9

Non-current

Trade payables ‘ 8.2 8.6

Accruals and defen;ed income o 8.3 7.3

| 16.5 15.9
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20 Borrowings and overdraft

Group Group
. 2016 2015
£m £m
Non-current :
Amounts due to ultimate parent . ' 8,688.8 8,098.8

See note 28 (Funding and Financial risk management) for further information about the maturity and interest rate
profiles of the Group’s borrowings.

Company ~ Company

S 2016 2015
£m Em

Non-current
Amounts due to ultimate parent 30.4 30.4
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2|1 Finance lease liabilities

a) Group finance lease liabilities

Principal
] (present value
Minimum of minimum
lease lease
payments Intefest  payments)
At 31 March 2016 : Em Em Em
Within one year ' 117.2 {(34.0) 83.2
Between one and two years 94.0 {28.6) 65.4
Between two and five years 242.2 {61.5) 180.7
Later than five years 239.0 (73.8) 165.2
692.4 (197.9)  494.5

At 3| March 2015 .
-Within one year 114.9 (39.2) 75.7
Between one and two years ' . © 1173 (34.1) 83.2
Between two and five years ‘ 257.4 (73.7) 183.7
Later than five years ' 318.7 (90.8) 2279
808.3- - (237.8) 570.5
2016 . 2015
Principal outstanding P Em Em
Current : 83.2 75.7
Non-current ‘ . 411.3 494.8
| A . ' ‘ 494.5 570.5
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2|  Finance lease liabilities (cOntinued)

The Group holds a proportion of its property, plant and equipment under finance lease arrangements as outlined in
note | |. :

Finance lease liabilities on the balance sheet are calculated as the present value of minimum lease payments
outstanding.

Terminal 5

" The Group is party to an agreement with Heathrow Airport Limited to construct, maintain and operate an extension
of the Piccadilly line to Terminal 5 at Heathrow Airport. The agreement entitles the Group to the exclusive right to
use the rail infrastructure to provide passenger rail services for an initial period of 30 years with an option to extend
for a further 999 years. In accordance with IFRIC 4, as the agreement conveys the right to use the rail infrastructure,
the asset should be accduntec@ for as if it were a leased asset. In accordance with IAS |7 the asset is accounted for
as a finance lease and an asset and corresponding finance lease creditor should be recorded on the statement of
financial position. The value of the assets and finance lease creditor is calculated as the lower of the present value of
minimum lease payments and the fair value of the assets.

Under the terms of the agreement the payments are én_tirely contingent on the number of passengers passing
through Heathrow underground station. 1AS 17 states that the calculation of the present value of minimum lease
payments should exclude contingent payments. Consequently the asset and finance lease creditor recorded on the
Statement of Financial Position have no value.

b) Company finance lease liabilities

The Company did néat have any finance lease liabilities at 31 March 2016 and 2015.

A22‘ Private finance initiative contracts

Private Finance Initiative contracts accounted for under IFRIC |2: Service concession arrangements

The Group is party to the following Private Finance Initiative (“PF1”) arrangements where the Group controls the use
of the infrastructure and the residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the arrangement. These
arrangements are treated as service concession arrangements and are accounted for in accordance with IFRIC |2
Service concession arrangements ('IFRIC 12’). '

The Group therefore recognises PFl assets as items of plant, property and equipment together with a liability to pay
for them. The fair values of services received under the contract are recorded as operating expenses.

In accordance with IFRIC |2, the unitary charge is apportioned between the repayment of the liability, financing costs
and charges for services. The charge for services is recognised as an expense in net operating costs and the finance
costs are charged to financial expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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22-  Private finance initiative contracts (continued)

Contract Contract dates Description

London Underground Limited ("LUL")

Connect - 1999 to 2019 ’ Design, installation, management and
' maintenance of integrated digital radio
system.

The contract requires LU to make an
annual unitary payment which is
adjusted for indexation and
performance as specified in the

contract.
British Transport Police (London 1999 to 202 | with a voluntary break  Provision and ongoing management
Underground) option on provision of |2 months and maintenance of operational
written notice . infrastructure to support efficient

policing of the Jubilee Line Extension
and the delivery of the long-term
policing strategy for LU.

The contract requires LU to make a
base annual unitary payment which is
adjusted for indexation and
performance as specified in the

contract.
Docklands Light Railway Limited
(‘DLR’) ,
Greenwich 1996 to 2021 Design, construction and ongoing

maintenance of the Greenwich
‘extension to the Docklands Light
Railway.

The contract requires DLR to make
payments, which are charged monthly

N and adjusted for any penalties relating
to adverse performance against output
-measures describing all relevant
aspects of the contract.
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23 Derivative financial instruments

Cash flow hedges Group Group Group ' éroup‘
' 2016 2016 2015 2015

| Notional ‘ ’ . Notional

Fair value amount Fair value amount

. £m £m £m . Em

Foreigh currency forward contracts ‘ ) 7.1 129.6 . - -

Current assets

Foreign currency forward contracts - . 5.1 137.2 22.6 - 484.0

Current liabilities

Foreign currency forward contracts ‘ . 21.3 769.1 1.3 113.4

Non-current liabilities

Interest rate swaps and forward starting interest rate swaps 949 830.7 101.3 830.9

The Company has not entered into any derivative financial instrument contracts.
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24 Provisions

a) Group provisions

Compensation and contractual
Environmental harm

Other

Compensation and contractual
Environmental harm
Other

Current

Non-current

Compensation and contractual

\ ~
At | April Utilised  Charge for Releasesin At 3! March )
2015 intheyear ~ theyear the year 2016
£m £m £m Em £m
503 (16.5) 257 (6.0) 53.5
.4 - - - 1.4
53.1 (9.1). 24.1 (0.4) 67.7
104.8 (25.6) 49.8 (6.4) 122.6
At | April Utilised  Charge for Re[eases in At 31 March
2014  inthe year the year the year 2015
Em £m fm Em £m
68.4 (13.8) 35.6 (39.9) 50.3
.4 - - - [.4°
35.5 {1.9) 203 (0.8) 53.1
105.3 {15.7) 55.9 (40.7) 104.8
" \ 2016 2015
£m £m
118.8 102.2
3.8 2.6
122.6 104.8

The Group has provisions for expected compensation and contractual claims that arise in respect of disputes arising
in the ordinary course of business. The provisions recorded are based’ on management's best estimate at'the
statement of financial position date of the likely loss to be incurred through settlement. Reflecting the inherent
uncertainty with many legal proceedings and claim settlements, the timing and amount of the outflows could differ

from the amount provided. Based on current estimates management expects that these amounts, which are based
on known facts and take account of past experience for similar items, will be settled W|th|n the next one to five

years. Where material the provision held is discounted to its present value

Environmental harm

1

Environmental harm relates to potential costs associated with damage to the environmental as a result of actions
taken in the past. Management expects this provision to be settled within the next year.

Other

Other provisions include voluntary severance costs arising from reorganisations and other smaller claims.

Management expects these provisions to be settled within the next year.
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.24 Provisions

b) Company provisions

At | April Utilised  Charge for Releasesin At 3| March

2015  inthe year the year the year 2016
» Em Em £m Em £m
Compensation and contractual 0.9 . 0.2 {0.6) 0.5

At | Apri( Utilised  Charge for Releasesin ‘At 31 March

2014  in the year the year the year 2015

_ £m £m Em Em £m

Compensation and contractual | 0.1 - 0.8 - 0.9
2016 2015

' £m £m

Current : ’ ' : 0.5 0.9

Compensation

The Company has provisions for expected compensation and contractual claims that arise in respect of disputes
arising in the ordinary course of business. The provisions recorded are based on management’s best estimate-at the
balance sheet date of the likely loss to be incurred through settlement. Reflecting the inherent uncertainty' with
many legal proceedings and claim settlements, the timing and amount of the outflows could differ from the amount
provided. Based on current estimates management expects that these amounts, which are based on known facts
and take account of past experience for similar items, will be settled within the next year. Where material the
provision held is discounted to its present value. V ‘

25 Contingencies

There are a number of uncertainties surrounding projects, including ¢laims in the course of negotiations, which may
affect the Group’s financial performance. Where claims are possible but not probable, or unquantifiable, such claims
are treated as contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements, but are
monitored to ensure that, where a possible obligation has become probable or a transfer of economic benefits.has
become probable, a provision is made. \

The Company has also provided a guarantee under section 479C of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of all
liabilities outstanding at 31 March 2016 of the majority of its subsidiary undertakings, in order that those subsidiaries
may take advantage of the exemption from audit of their individual financial statements. Those subsidiaries for which
a guarantee has been provided are as listed in note 13.

The irﬁpact of these contingent liabilities on the Group's financial performance, liquidity or financial position is not
considered to be material.

N
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-

26 Financial commitments

a) Operating leases — The Group as lessee

The Group operating lease agreements primarily relate to office space, motor vehicles and rail access. All leases have
been entered into on commercial terms. - ,

+

The Group is committed to the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:

Land and Motor
buildings  Rail access vehicles Rolling stock - Total
At 31 March 2016 Em £m £Em Em Em
Within one year 36.3 12.5 2.7 23.8 75.3
Between one and two years ! 29.9 12.1 1.8 23.8 67.6
Between two énd five years 47.7 31.7 2.1 71.5 153.0
Later than five years T, 226.6 14.8 - 171.5 412.9
340.5 71.1 6.6 290.6 708.8

At3| March 2015

Within one year 299 42 32 185 55.8
Between one and two years - 27.2 44 1.5 21.9 55.0
Between two and five years ‘ 60.4 2.5 1.3 71.5 135.7
Later than five years 262.8 16.9 - 219.2 498.9
‘ 380.3 28.0 6.0 331.1 745.4

b) Operating leases — The Group as lessor

The Group leases out commercial, retail and office property, rail access and land that it holds as a result of its
infrastructure holdings.

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Group had contracted with customers for the following future
minimum lease payments:, : )

Land and Motor
' : buildings  Rail access vehicles Total
At 31 March 2016 : \ " £m £m £m £m
Within one year 43.2 8.5 0.2 51.9
Between one and two years ' 379 4.2 0.1 42.2
Between two and five years ' K ; . 857 N - 98.8
Later than five years ) - 447.0 9.6 - 456.6 °
613.8 35.4 0.3 649.5
At 31 March 2015
Within one year C , 43.0 8.5 0l 51.6
Between one and two years | 36.1 - 4.1 0.1 40.3
Between two and five years 786 116 - 902
Later than five years y 475.0 7.4 - 482.4
. 6327 31.6 0.2 664.5

Transport Trading Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 67



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

26  Financial commitments (continued)

c) Operating leases —The Company as lessee

The Company has lease agreements primarily related to office space. All leases have been entered into on

commercial terms.

At 31 March 2016

" Within one year
Between one,énd two years
Between two and five years

Later than five years

At 31 March 2015

Within one year

Between one and two years

Between two and five years

Later than five years

Land and
buildings
£m

3.5

2.7

5.2°

17.6

29.0

2.5
2.1
3.5
18.2
26.3

d) Operating leases - The Company as lessor with third parties

The Company leases out commercial, retail and office property, and land that it holds as a result of its infrastructure

holdings.

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the'Comp'any had contracted with customers for the following future

minimum lease payments:

At 31 March 2016

Within one year

Between one and two years
Between two and five years

" Later than five years

At 31 March 2015

Within one year

Between one and two years
Between two.and five years

Later than five years

Land and
buildings
£m
1.0
1.0

2.0 .

1.0

5.0

1.0
1.0
2.0
24
6.4
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26  Financial commitments (continued)

e} Operating leases ~The Company as lessor with related parties

The Company leases out commercial, retail and office property, and land that it holds as a result of its infrastructure
holdings. - ’

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the Company had contracted with customers for the following future ¢
minimum lease payments: . ’ ' ~

Land and
. ~ buildings
At 3| March 2016 A b £m
Within one year . ' : 1.2
Between one and two years B . . 1.2
Between two and‘five years ' : B . 3.7
Later than five years » ’ . ' 53.2
' ' 59.3

At 31 March 2015
Within one year . ' - 1.2
~ Between one and two yeérs ‘ ) 1.2
Between two and five years ) 4 : . 3.7
Later than five years . ‘ . ) . 52.8
' 1 i 58.9

The inter-company lease relates to Victoria Coach Station.
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27 Deferred grant

. Note
At | April
Transport grant
Third party contributions and other grants to fund prc;perty, plant and equipment
Released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
- to meet the depreciation charge ‘ : 2

- on disposal of property, plant and equipment
At 31 March

At | April

Transport grant )

- Third party contributions and other grants to fund property, plant and equipment
Released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income account: '
- to meet the depreciation charge

At 3| March

Group Group.
2016 2015
£m £m,
13,022.6 12,234.7
'848.5 1,356.8
42.9 47.7
(625.1) (598.2)
(68.8) " (18.4)
13,220.1 13,022.6
Company Company
2016 © 2015
fm £m
116.6 138.6
21.7 15.3
0.5 -
(26.4) (37.3)
112.4 116.6

~ There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingenéies attached to the grants from Transport for London.

Grants from other government entities will sometimes require proof of the gxpehditure that TTL has incurred as a

_condition of receiving the grant.
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28 Funding and financial risk management ’

Introduction -

The Group’s comprehensive risk management process is the responsibility of a committe€, the Finance and Policy
Committee {“the Committee”), of the Board of Transport for London, the Company’s ultimate parent. The:
Committee has approved and monitors the risk management processes, including documented treasury policies,
counterparty limits, controlling and reporting structures.

The Group’s financial instruments comprise derivatives, borrowings, finance leases, cash and cash equivalents and
various items such as trade receivables and payables that arise directly from operations. The Group finances
operations from these financial instruments. The Group does not undertake speculative treasury transactions.

7

Financial Risks and Risk Management

The Group is exposed to a number of financial risks in the normal course of its business operations, the key ones

being: -
> Credit risk
> Liquidity risk

> Market risk
Each of these risks is managed in accordance with the TfL Group’s Treasury Management Strategy.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group-wide basis. Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet contractual obligations. The following categories comprise the
main credit exposures of the Group.

" Trade and other receivables

The majority of the Group’s trade receivables are individuals who owe amounts relating to the use of transport
infrastructure. The Group earns the majority of revenue through prepaid fares, and the reéeivables relate to penalty
charges. The Group makes all reasonable attempts to recover penalty charges before providing against them. Other
receivables include amounts due under contractual arrangements with suppliers, and include prepayments for work
to be performed. These counterpafties are assessed individually for their creditworthiness at the time of entering
into contract and termination provisions are included to mitigate the Group’s risk.

Investments

\
~

All cash balances are invested in accordance with TfL's Treasury Management Strategy that was developed with
regard to the Treasury Management Code and the Department for Communities and Local Government Guidance,
which requires a prudent approach to the investment of surplus funds with priority given to security and liquidity.

Counterparty limits are set according to the assessed risk of each counterparty and exposures are monitored against
these limits on a regular basis. Deposit limits per institution on the Appréved Investment List, and the maximum
term of deposits, are linked to the credit rating of the institution. TfL will not trade with an institution with a credit
rating of less than A- with all three major credit rating agencies.

-
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28 Funding and financial risk management (continued)
Derivative financial Instruments '

The Group and Company spread their exposure over a number -of counterparties, and have strict policies on how
much exposure can be assigned to each counterparty. '

The credit risk with regard to derivative financial instruments is limited because there are arrangements in place that
limit each bank to a threshold, which if breached, allows the Group to require the bank to post collateral in cash or
eligible securities. The Group only envisages using these rights in the event that the financial strength of the
institution has deteriorated from when the limits were approved.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its -

liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is low as Transport for Loridon provides financial support to the Group. In
accordance with the Local Government Act 2003 Transport for London sets an affordable borrowing limit. As long as
the affordable borrowing limit is not exceeded, Transport for London is able to borrow from the Public Works Loan
Board, raise debt on the capital markets {hrough both its established Medium Term Note prograrﬁme and
‘Commercial Paper programme, and subject to meeting the relevant criteria, borrow at competitive interest rates
from the European Investment Bank. There is therefore no significant risk that Transport for London would be unable
to raise finance to meet the Transport Trading Limited group financial commitments.

The contractual maturities of the Group and Company’s financial liabilities are listed later in this note.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will affect the Group's income, expenditure or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Group, through
its wholly owned subsidiary, Transport for London Finance Limited, uses derivatives (hedging instruments) to reduce
exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate movements {the hedged risks) on "highly probable future
transactions. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

On inception, all interest rate derivatives are designated in highly effective hedge relationships and hedge accounting
is applied. If a derivative should no longer satisfy the hedging criteria in accordance with adopted IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and measurement ('IAS 39’), hedge accounting ceases and the derivative is fair valued
immediately through the Income Statement. ‘

The use of derivative instruments can itself give rise to credit and market risk. Market risk is the possibility that future
changes in interest rates may make a derivative more or less valuable. Since the Group uses derivatives for risk
management, market risk relating to derivative instruments is principally offset by changes in the cash flows of the
transactions being hedged.

Transport Trading Limited Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 72



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

28 Funding and financial risk management (contihued)

/
~ For the years ended 3| March 2016 and 2015, all interest rate derivatives were assessed as highly effective.-

Accordingly, the movement in the fair value of these derivatives was recognised in other comprehensive income and '

expense.
Foreign exchange risk

For 2015/16, the broad policy on manéging transactional foreign exchange risk arising from contractual obligations
with overseas prowders was to pass the exchange risk to the vendor where there was value in doing so. For specaﬂc
transactions where the risk was retained by the Group, exchange rate exposures were managed through the use of
forward foreign exchange contracts. Hedge accounting is applied to these derivative instruments.

At 31 March 2016, the Group held forward foreign derivative contracts in Euros, US Dollars and Canadian Dollars to
hedge planned foreign currency capital expenditure payments with a net nominal value of £180.6m (2015 £3.2m). At
31 March 2016, these contracts had a combined net fair value of £1 1.0m (2015 £nil). It is expected that the hedged
purchases will take place in the period to | September 202|. The maturity of all these contracts is disclosed later in
this note. All hedging relationships have been assessed as |00 per cent effective.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group also held forward foreign exchange swaps to hedge €978.0m (2015 €791 .5m) future
Euro receipts in relation to Euro investments held by the Company’s parent, Transport for London. These contracts
were not in formally designated hedging relationships for accounting purposes, as TfL is outside the Transport
Trading Limited Group, and hence hedge accounting has not been applied. A fair value net loss movement on these
contracts totalling £41.4m (2015 £21.3m) has therefore been recognised directly in the Income Statement within
financial income. These derivative instruments mature in the period to June 2016.

Where funds were received in specific currencies in which the Group expected to have future exposures, the
Investment Strategy made allowances to place these funds on deposit. This gave the Group the flexibility to offer
certain payments in specific foreign currencies where required.

N

Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange risk

As at 31 March 2016 the Group holds Euro forward foreign exchange contracts with a combined nominal net sale
value of £736.4m (2015 £591.0m) and a net fair value liability of £18.5m (2015 an asset of £21.3m).

A 10 per cent increase/{decrease) in GBP against the Euro would increase/(decrease) the fair value of these derivative
instruments by £68.6m/(£83.9m) (2015 increase/(decrease by £51.8m/(63.3mj).

As at 3| March 2016, the Group held forward foreign exchange contracts with a combined net nominal value of
£1.0m (2015 £nil) and a fair value of £0.1m (2015 £nil), to purchase US dollars. A 10 per cent increase/(decrease} in
GBP against the US dollar would (decreasel/increase the fair value of these derivative investments by (£0.m)/£0.m.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group also held forward foreign exchange contracts with a combined net notional value of
£161.5m (2015 £nil) and a fair value of £9.3m (2015 £nil) to purchase Canadian dollars. A |0 per cent

. increasef(decrease) in GBP against the Canadian dollar would {decrease)/increase the fair value of these derivative
investments by( £15.5m)/£19.3m

The Group has no other material exposure to foreign exchange rate movements.
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28 Funding and financial risk management (continued)
Interest risk
The Group is mainly exposed to interest rate risk on its actual and planned future borrowings from TfL.

As at 3| March 2016, the Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary Transport for London Finance Limited, held 18 ‘
interest rate swaps at a notional value of £830.7m {2015 |8 interest rate swaps at a total notional value of £830.9m).
The net fair value of these contracts at 31 March 2016 was a liability of £94.9m .(20 I5 £101.3m). As the hedging was
assessed as fully effective these unrealised losses have been recognised in the hedging reserve. Amounts held in the
hedging reserve are expected to impact the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement over the period to

. December 2042.

The maturity of the forward fixing contracts is disclosed late in this note.
Sensitivity analysis on interest risk
. Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed interest instruments

All of the Group’s non-derivative financial instruments with fixed rates of interest are accounted for at amortised
cost. Fluctuations in market interest rates would therefore have no impact on the balance sheet or net income
figures in respect of these items.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for derivative instruments

As at 31 March 2016, the Group holds interest rate derivative contracts with a combined notional value of £830.7m
(2015 £830.9m) which are designated as cash flow hedges.

An increasef(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates would increase/(decreasé) the fair value of the derivative
instruments by £38.8m/(£37.0m) (2015 £46.7m/(£48.5m)).

Inflation risk

The Group has a number of exposures to inflation including staff pay awards and fares revenue. The Group has not
entered into any derivative instrument to manage its exposure to inflation risk. At present, the risk is partially offset
with index linked revenues and index linked costs creating a natural hedge within the Group.
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28 Funding and financial'ri'sk management (continued)

Maturity profile of derivatives

The Group’s derivative financial instruments have the following maturities:

Foreign currency forward contracts

Buy euro

Less than one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
Sell euro

Less than one year

Total euro

Buy US Dollars

Less than one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
Total US Dollars

Buy Canadian Dollars

Less than one year -
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
After five years

Total Canadian Dollars

Grand total

Interest rate hedges
Less than one year
Between two and five years

After five years

2015

3.626

2016 2016 2016 2015 2015
Average Notional Average Notional
exchange Fair value amount exchange Fair value amount
rate £m fm . rate £m £m
0.770 7 56.0 0.729 - 3.2
0.738 (.1 12.4 _ - -
0.759 - 0.1 - - -
0.772 (21.3) 804.9 0.751 21.3 594.2
0.772 (18.5) 873.4 0.751 21.3 597.4
" 0.640 - 0.4 - - -
0.640 0.1 0.3 - - -
0.638 - 0.3 _ - -
0.639 0.1 1.0 - - -
0.498 3.4 45.1 - - -
0.500 2.4 35.5 ° - - -
0.510 3. 68.4 - - -
0.513 0.4 12.5 - , _
0.504 9.3 161.5 - - -
. n/a (9.1)  1,035.9 n/a 21.3 597.4
: 2016 2016 2016 2015 2015 2015
Average Notional Average ’ Notional
- interest  Fair value amount interest  Fair value amount
rate (%) £m £m rate (%) £m £m
3.273 {9.2) 250.0 - - -
3.718 (24.4) 275.0 3.504 (39.4) 500.0
3.832 (61.3) 305.7 3.810 (61.9) 330.9
©3.626 (94.9) - 830.7 (101.3)

830.9

The Company does not hold any derivative financial instrument contracts.
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28  Funding and financial risk management (continued)

Contractual maturity of derivatives

The following tables detail the Group’s liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have been

drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash inflows and outflows on derivative instruments that settle

on a net basis, and the undiscounted gross inflows and outflows on those derivatives that require gross settlement.

When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the

projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves at the end of the reporting period.

Between Between
Less than one and two and More than
one year two years five years five years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Group — 2016
Derivatives settled gross’
Foreign exchange forward contracts:
Amounts receivable 911.4 51.8 71.9 . 13.0 1,048. |
Amounts payable {927.6) (48.3) (68.8) (12.5) (1,057.2)
Derivatives settled net
Interest rate swaps ’ (25. ” (20.3) (29.4) (l 7.6) (92.4)
(41.3) (16.8) (26.3) (17.1) {101.5)
Group — 2015
Derivatives settled gross
Foreign exchange forward contracts:
Amounts receivable 597t4 : - - - 597.4 -
Amounts payable: : '(576. 1) - - - {576.1)
Derivatives settled net
Interest rate swaps {25.0) (19.6) (22.5) ) (4.2) (71.3)
' (3.7) (19.6) (22.5) (4.2) (50.0)

The total asset or liability due to the Group as recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the fair value of
the derivatives as this represents the cost to terminate. As such it differs from the total net contractual payments
shown in the table above. At 31 March 2016, the fairvalue of the interest rate derivatives was a net liability of

£94.9m-(20.15 £101.3m). The fair value of forward foreign exchange derivatives was a net liability of £9.1m (2015 a

asset of £21.3m).
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28 Funding and financial risk managemeht (continued)

Contractual maturity of financial liabilities

The following table details the Group and the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for their non derivative
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group or Company can be required to pay, and therefore differs from the carrying value

and the fair value. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Group - 2016 7
Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Finance lease liabilities

Group - 2015
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Finance lease liabilities

Company - 2016
Trade and other payables

Borrowings .

Company - 2015
Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Y SN
Between Between
Less than one and two and More than
oneyear - twoyears five years five years Total
fm . Em £m - £m Em
1,809.2 51.5 - . - 1,860.7
- ~1,975.4 4,265.2 2,448.2 8,688.8
§17.2 94.0 242.2 239.0 692.4 -
1,926.4 2,120.9 4,507.4 2,687.2 11,241.9
1,345.0 81.1 - - 1,426.1
- 1,975.4 4,219.7 1,903.7 8,098.8
114.9 173 257.4 318.7 808.3
1,459.9 8,29_7.2 257.4 318.7 10,333.2
177.0 8.2 - - 185.2
- 30.4 - - ' 30.4
177.0 38.6 - - 215.6
154.4 8.6 - - 163.0
- 30.4 - - 30.4
154.4 39.0 - - 193.4
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28  Funding and financial risk management (continued)

Fair values

In accordance with IAS 39, the fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which

the instrument could beAexchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or

liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Cash and cash equivalents — approximates to the carrying amount.

Short term investments — approximates to the carrying amount because of the short maturity of these
instruments.

Long-term investments — by reference to bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date, within
Level | of the fair value hierarchy as defined within IFRS 7.

Loans to associated undertakings — determined by calculating the discounted value of the future cash flows
{redemption and interest) using appropriate interest rates, based on observable market data, in effect at the
balance sheet date at level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Trade and other receivables - approximates to the carrying amount.

Derivative financial instruments — In the absence of quoted market prices, derivatives are valued by using quoted
forward prices for the underlying commodity/currency and discounted using quoted interest rates (both as at the .
close of business on the balance sheet date). Hence, derivatives are within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as
defined within IFRS 7. ‘

» Forward exchange contracts — based on market data and exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

> Interest rate swaps and forward starting interest rate swaps — based on the net present value of
discounted cash flows. '

Trade and other payables - approximates to the carrying amount.

Long-term borrowings — based on market data in the case of fixed rate borrowings; and approximates to the
carrying amount in the case of short-term commercial paper.

Finance lease liabilities — approximates to the carrying amount.

Where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. These include using recent
arm'’s length transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the
same; and discounted cash flow analysis and pricing models. .
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28  Funding and financial risk management (continued)

Group

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments

Total financial assets

Trade and other payables
‘Borrowings and overdrafts
Finance lease liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Total financial liabilities

Net financial liabilities

Company
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Total financial assets

Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Total financial liabilities

Net financial assets

2016 2016 2015 2015
. : ) Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
£m £m £m £m
104.5 104.5 33.0 ‘33.0
1,706.3 1,706.3 1,235.7 1,235.7
12.2 12.2 22.6 22.6
1,823.0 1,823.0 1,291.3 1,291.3
1,860.7 1,860.7 1,426. 1,426.1
8,688.8 8,688.8 8,098.8 8,098.8
494.5 494.5 570.5 570.5
116.2 116.2 102.6 102.6
11,160.2 11,160.2 10,198.0 10,198.0
(9,337.2) (9,337.2) {8,906.7) (8,906.7)
2016 2016 2015 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
£m £m £m £m
65.9 65.9 1.9 1.9
321.4 321.4 339.7 339.7
387.3 387.3 341.6 3416
192.9 192.9 170.1 170.1
30.4 30.4 30.4 30.4
223.3 223.3 200.5 200.5
164.0 164.0 141.1 141.1

The fair value of the Company's assets did not differ materially from the carrying value at 3| March 2016 or 2015.
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29 Pensions
a) Background
The Group offers retirement plans to its employees.

The majority of the Group’s staff are members of the two sections of the TfL Pension Fund, namely the Public
Sector Section and the Tube Lines Section. The majority of the Group’s remaining staff belong to the Railway
Pension Scheme, and the Tube Lines defined contribution scheme.

b) 'Defined benefit schemés
TfL Pension Fund

The TfL Pension Fund is a final salary scheme established under trust. Benefits are based on employees' length‘of
service and final pensionable pay. The Fund’s Trustee is the TfL Trustee Company Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Transport for London. Under the rules of the Fund, its |8 trustee directors are nominated in equal
numbers by Transport for London and on behalf of the Fund’s membership.

Every three years, the TfL Pension Fund’s Actuary makes valuations and recommends the level of contributions to
be made by the pa&icipating employers to ensure long-term solvency of the Fund. The latest available valuation of
the Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2015 by the Actuary, a partner of consulting actuaries Towers Watson, using
the projected unit method. A revised Schedule of Contributions was agreed between the Trustee and the employers
following the formal funding valuation of the TfL Pension Fund.

Employer’s contributions for the period from | April 2016 until 31 March 2022 will continue to be 31.0 per cent with
an additional lump sum due by 31 March 2018. The recovery plan states that the expectation is that the funding
shortfall will be eliminated by 31 March 2022.

On 30 March 2016, the Groups obligations in reépect of the Tube Lines Section transferred from Tube Lines Limited,
a subsidiary of the TTL Group, to the TfL Corporation as the Tube Lines Section of the TfL Pension Fund was
merged into the Public Sector Section. This is shown as a settlement loss in the analysis amounts charged to net
cost of services. ) ' ’

Railways Pension Scheme

Crossrail Limited (“CRL") contributes to the Omnibus Section of the Railways Pension Scheme (“RPS”). The RPS is a
defined benefit arrangement for rail industry employees. The Omnibus Section is made up of 37 participating
employers, each (apart from CRL) having fewer than 51 active members in the scheme.

The Omnibus Section of the RPS is a multi-employer scheme and is valued as a whole. As a result of this, CRL is
unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and defined benefit obligation. It is therefore accounted for as a
defined contribution scheme under IAS 9.

The last aétuarial valuation of the Omnibus Section of the scheme was carried out at 3|1 December 2013 The
_ actuarial report showed that there was a deficit of assets over liabilities of £5.4m for the total Omnibus Section.

The findings of the 2013 valuation report were translated into the current contribution level of 3| per cent up to 30
June 2015, and 26.9 per cent effective from | July 2015. The pension charge for the year was £5.4m (2014/15
£6.2m).
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29 Pensions (continued) ' S

v

Other schemes:

The Group also ¢ontributes to a number of defined contribution_schemes. including the Tube Lines defined

contribution scheme.
¢} Accounting

‘A valuation of the Public Sector and Tube Lines Sections of the TfL Pension Fund has been prepared for accounting
purposes on an IAS |9 basis as at 3| March 20I6 The assumptlons used by the actuary are the best estimates
chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptlons whilst the present value of the sections’ defined benefit
obligations is derived from cash flow projections. Due to the timescale covered, heither the assumptlons nor the
cash flow projections may necessarily be borne out in practice.

The defined benefit obligations for the two sections of the TfL Pension Fund have been calculated using the
mortality assumptions adopted for the latest funding valuation as at 3| March 2015. Standard mortality tables were
used, adjusfed to reflect the recent mortality experience of the Fund's pensioners at that date. An allowance was
made for future mortality improvements based on the CMI 2015 projections with a long term improvement rate of

|.25 percent per annum.

I

The Group's parent, Transport for London, and the Company’s fellow subsidiaries participate in the Public Sector
Section and’it is not possible to identify the Company’s or the Group's share of the underlying assets and defined
benefit obligations. Thus, in accordance with the standard, the Group treats contributions to the Public Sector
Section as if they were contributions to a defined contribution plan. The Group’s contributions to the Section of
£229.7m (2014/15 £216.1m) have been charged to the Income Statement.

The Tube Lines Section of the TfL Pension Fund transferred from Tube Lines Limited to the TfL Public Sector
Section on 30 March 2016.

The IAS 19 deficit on the Public Sector Section of the TfL Pension Fund at 31 March.2016 was _£'3,09I.9m (2015
£2,737.5m). As Vstéted above, it is not possible to identify the Group’s particular share of the deficit. Further details,
can be found in the Statement of Accounts of Transport for London. Further details are disclosed in the tables

below.

~ ' - .
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29 Pensions (continued)

Analysis of movements in the Tube Lines Section of the TfL Pension Fund as included in the Statement of
Financial Position for the Group are as follows:

Reconciliation of the Section's liabilities .

) £m
At | April 2015 ' » 308.3
Current service' cost . ‘ 134
Interest cost ‘ ‘ . 8.8
Employee contributions _ ' . 2.0
Net remeasurement gains - financial : (16.0)
‘Net remeasuremént gains - experience : ‘ (2.0
Net remeasurement losses - demographic -
Actual benefit payments : (24.2)
Settlements ‘ {290.3)
At 3| March 2016 ' : -
Reconciliation of‘ fair value of the Section's asﬁets ‘
£m
At | AprilA2\0|5 , . 276.3
_Interest income on scheme assets ’ ’ } ' 8.2
Return on assets excluding interest income ' , (12.9)
Actual empléyler contributions . . . ' 17.2
Employee contributions ' A h 2.0
Actual benefit payments . A (24.2)
Scheme expenses : (0.6}
Settlements ‘ | . ' (266.0)
At3| March2016 « ' , , R
Net deficit ) -
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Reconciliation of the Section's liabilities

At | April 2014

Current service cost

Interest cost

, Employee contributions

Net remeasurement losses - financial

Net remeasurement‘losses - experience
Net remeasurement losses - demographic
Actual benefit payrﬁents

At 3| March 2015

2

Reconciliation of fair value of the Section's assets

At | April 2014

interest income on scheme assets

Return on assets excluding interest income
' Actual employer contributions A
Employee contributions

Actual benefit payments

_* Scheme expenses

At 31 March 2015

Other schemes

7

-

£m

287.3
12:3
1.4

22
230
(7.5)

(20.4)

308.3

£m

. 239.5
10.0
22.7
22.9

2.2
(20.4)
(0.6)

276.3

Contributions of £9.8m (2014/15 £12.1m restated) have been charged to the Statement of Comprehensive

Income, of which contributed towards various smaller Funds including the Railways Pension Scheme.

-
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29 Pensions (continued) » SR .

d) Summary of pension totals for the year

Restated

Group Group

2016 . 2015

Total pensic;n service cost for the year Note £m £m
TfL Pension Fund (Public Sector Section) . : 229.7 216.6
TL Pension Fund (Tube Lines Section) - Cost _ 13.4 12.9
TfL Pension Fund (Tube Lines Section} - Settlement ‘ (24.3) ' -
Other schemes : . 9.8 11.5
Total pension service cost for the year ~ 5 228.6 241.0
Scheme administrative expenses for the TfL Pension Fund (Tube Lines Section) 0.6 . 0.6
Amount i.ncluded in cost of operations - _ . 229.2 241.6

Group Group

2016 2015 -

Net interest on defined benefit obligations _ £m Em
TfL Pension Fund (Tube Lines Section) 0.6 - 1.4
Amounts charged to financial expenditure 8 0.6 .4
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29 Pensions (continued)

Total actuarial gains and losses recognised

Actuarial gain on TfL Pension Fund (Tube Lines Section)

The fair values of the assets of the Tube Lines Section were as follows:

Equities
Bonds

Total market value of assets

The main actuarial assumptions used for the Tube Lines Section were:

RPI inflation
Rate of increase in salaries

Discount rate

-

Group Group
2016 2015
£m £m

5.1 7.2
Value at Value at
3| March 31 March
2016 2015
£m £m

- 232.1

- 44.2

- 276.3

At 3| March At3I March
2016 2015

% %

n/a 2.75

n/a 2.75.

n/a 2.95
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30 Called up share capital

Company and Group ‘ 2016 2015
£m £m
As at | April . 5,430.0 3,930.0
Issued during the year - 1,830.0 1,500.0
As at 3| March ' 7,260.0 5,430.0
Number Number

Authorised £1 shares 7,260m  5,430m
Issued and fully paid up £1 shares : 7,260m 5,430m

During 2015/16 TTL issued 1,830m fully paid £ ordinary shares (2014/15 |,500m fully paid £1 ordinary shares).

31 Related party transactions

During the year none of TTUs directors, key management personnel or parties related to them, have undertaken any
material transactions with the Company or its subsidiaries (2014/15 none).

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TfL. TfL is a statutory corporation established by section |54 of the
Greater London Authority Act 1999. It is a functional body of the Greater London Authority (“GLA”} and reports to
the Mayor of London. TfL is classified as a government entity in accordance with IAS 24 Related party transactions
(“IAS 24”) and the Company and its subsidiaries are therefore also classified as government entities in accordance
with IAS 24.

The GLA and its other functional bodies, and all other subsidiaries of TfL, are considered to be related parties of the
Company'. Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated
on consolidation. Material transactions however between the Company and its subsidiaries and other related parties
are outlined below: :

The Group and Company traded with the following related parties that are classified as government entities under
IAS 24: ‘

* interest accrued by the Group on loans from Transport for London is disclosed in note &;

*  Receipt of funding from Transport for London in the form of grants (notes 3 and 27), loans (note 20) or share
capital {notes |3 and 30);

* Interest accrued on loans from Tube Lines (Finance) Plc to Transport for London is disclosed in note 7;

* Payment of management fees to TfL for various services and provision of equipment by TfL to the TTL
Group.

. Paymef{t of management fees totalling £257.8m by TTL’s subsidiaries to TTL for various services and
provision of equipment.

»  TfL makes payments to the British Transport Police for the provision of policing services on the Underground
and Overground railways.
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32 Ultimate parent undertaking

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Transport for London whose Board members are appointed by the
Mayor of London. Copies of Transport for London’s accounts will be available in due course from Windsor House,

42-50 Victoria Street, London SWIH OTL. .

33 Events occurring after the reporting date

\

There have been no events occurring after the reporting date that would have a material impact on these financial

statements.
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